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Mis sion State ment

The Plan ning In sti tute of Ja maica is com mit ted to lead ing the

pro cess of pol icy for mu la tion on eco nomic and so cial is sues and

ex ter nal co op er a tion man age ment to achieve sus tain able

de vel op ment for the peo ple of Ja maica.



DI REC TOR GEN ERAL'S
STATE MENT

T
he year 2008 was very busy and pro duc tive for the Plan -
ning In sti tute of Ja maica (PIOJ). The In sti tute took on
many ad di tional tasks cov er ing pol icy ad vice, in for ma -

tion and re search for the Gov ern ment of Ja maica (GOJ), as
well as data and in for ma tion for the pri vate sec tor and other
stake holders. This was achieved through its man date of pro -
vid ing cred i ble and timely pol icy and plan ning ad vice on so -
cial, eco nomic and en vi ron men tal is sues and ex ter nal
co op er a tion man age ment. These ac tiv i ties took place dur ing
a very chal leng ing year which started with the fuel and food
cri sis and ended with the global fi nan cial cri sis. The PIOJ, as
usual, grap pled with short-term na tional cri sis man age ment
but also looked for long-term so lu tions within the ru bric of
Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan.  These ef -
forts em pha sized col lab o ra tion among key stake holders: De -
part ments and Agen cies of the GOJ; In ter na tional
De vel op ment Part ners (IDPs); the pri vate sec tor; and civil so -
ci ety.

FO CUS

The PIOJ op er ated with a num ber of clear pri or i ties for
2008. These in cluded: re lo cat ing to the PIOJ Build ing; pre -
sent ing the Draft Na tional De vel op ment Plan and the Me -
dium Term Socio-Eco nomic Frame work (MTF) 2009-2012
to the Cab i net for ap proval; better align ing of of fi cial de vel -
op ment as sis tance (ODA) with the stra te gic im per a tives of
the GOJ; and strength en ing the In sti tute's ca pac ity for mod el -
ling and fore cast ing as a way of improving evidence-based
policy making.

MILE STONES/ACHIEVE MENTS

There were quite a num ber of achieve ments in 2008. On
April 21, the PIOJ moved to its new home lo cated at 16 Ox -
ford Road. On June 4, there was the twin cel e bra tion—the
launch of the Eco nomic and So cial Sur vey Ja maica (ESSJ)
50th An ni ver sary Pub li ca tion and the Of fi cial Open ing of the
PIOJ Build ing by Prime Min is ter, the Hon our able Bruce
Golding. 

On No vem ber 17, the Draft Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional 
De vel op ment Plan and the MTF 2009-2012 were ap proved
by Cab i net for pub lic dis sem i na tion and dis cus sion.  This
doc u ment was the cul mi na tion of nu mer ous is land-wide con -
sul ta tions with a wide cross sec tion of stake holders. There
were 10 pub lic con sul ta tions across the coun try, be gin ning in
Montego Bay, St. James and end ing in Morant Bay, St.
Thomas.

On No vem ber 25, the An nual Di a logue for De vel op ment
Lec ture was held at the Ja maica Peg a sus. It also served as the
Open ing Cer e mony for the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di -
tions (JSLC) 20th An ni ver sary Con fer ence. The Lec ture en -
ti tled 'The Con ver sa tion Be tween Sta tis tics and So cial
Pol icy: When We Lis ten, When We Don't' was de liv ered by
Pro fes sor Pa tri cia An der son. The Lec ture cap tured the theme
of the  Con fer ence, 'Fram ing So cial De vel op ment Pol icy
Through Re search'.  

The con struc tion of 20-year in di ces of so cial well-be ing
for health, ed u ca tion, hous ing, con sump tion, de mog ra phy
and wel fare, as well as an over all in dex, us ing time se ries data 
from the JSLC, was also pre sented at the Con fer ence. This
was pre sented by Dr Mi chael Witter in a re port en ti tled 'the
Changes in the So cio eco nomic Con di tions of Ja mai can
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House holds over the Years, 1989-2006'.

Dur ing the course of the year, the PIOJ was in te gral in se -
cur ing ap prox i mately US$1.6 bil lion (J$116.7 bil lion) in ex -
ter nal aid and flow into Ja maica. These funds were se cured in
keep ing with the GOJ's pol icy de ci sion of achiev ing more ef -
fec tive do nor co or di na tion, greater en gage ment with the mul -
ti lat eral fi nanc ing in sti tu tions (MFIs), and ac cess to the most
concessional terms avail able to the GOJ. 

The In sti tu tional Strength en ing of the Plan ning In sti tute
of Ja maica con tin ued dur ing the year. This two-year pro ject,
funded by the Ca na dian In ter na tional De vel op ment Agency
(CIDA), aims to strengthen the PIOJ's ca pac ity for long-term
sus tain able de vel op ment plan ning, pol icy for mu la tion and
mon i tor ing.

The align ment of GOJ's im per a tives with ODA is ev i -
denced by the pri or ity pro jects/ programmes of the draft Me -
dium Term Socio-Eco nomic Frame work (MTF) 2009-2012.

The PIOJ has con trib uted to a num ber of pol icy bod ies
through out the course of the year. In col lab o ra tion with the
Min is try of Fi nance & the Pub lic Ser vice and the Bank of Ja -
maica, the PIOJ has been pre par ing weekly briefs for mon i -
tor ing and re spond ing to the im pact of the global fi nan cial
and eco nomic cri sis on the Ja mai can econ omy. The PIOJ par -
tic i pated in the Sta tis ti cal In sti tute of Ja maica's (STATIN) re -
view of the Ja maica Sys tem of Na tional Ac counts (SNA)
which re sulted in the rebasing of the con stant price es ti mates
from 1996 to 2003. There was also col lab o ra tion on the de -
vel op ment of the Tour ism Sat el lite ac count, which will al low
a more com pre hen sive mea sure ment of to tal eco nomic ac tiv -
ity in the coun try.

The In sti tute co or di nated the pro cess of as sess ment and

prep a ra tion of the Macro-So cio eco nomic and En vi ron men tal 
Im pact of Trop i cal Storm Gustav (Au gust 29, 2008) on
Jamaica. A re port was sub mit ted to the Cab i net, Par lia ment
and our IDPs and was crit i cal to the prep a ra tion of pro jects
for re ha bil i ta tion as well as re con struc tion.  

A crit i cal ini tia tive dur ing 2008, which em a nated from
Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan and
which has far-reach ing sig nif i cance for the coun try, was the
pro ject pro posal for fund ing to pre pare the Na tional Spa tial
Plan which will pro vide the spa tial frame work for guid ing the 
lo ca tion and reg u la tion of planned de vel op ments. It will be a
col lab o ra tive endeavour with the Na tional En vi ron men tal
and Plan ning Agency (NEPA), the Cab i net Of fice and the Of -
fice of the Prime Min is ter (OPM) which are in te grally in -
volved in its im ple men ta tion.

The PIOJ played a crit i cal role in the suc cess ful fi nal iza -
tion and launch of the So cial Pro tec tion Programme (SPP),
ef fec tive Oc to ber 2008, sup ported by a US$40 mil lion loan
from the World Bank. As of De cem ber 2008, the SPP funds a
scheme of dif fer en ti ated ben e fits to the ed u ca tion ben e fi cia -
ries of PATH in or der to pro mote school at ten dance and re ten -
tion.

Un der the pi lot of the Steps-to-Work Programme ini ti ated
by the PIOJ, the Gov ern ment launched a two-year pi lot pro -
ject to pro vide work ing age per sons in poor house holds that
are cur rently on PATH, with train ing and skills to im prove
their ca pac ity to seek and re tain em ploy ment.

The JamStats Pro ject up dated its da ta base to 2008 and
launched this as well as the pro ject's own of fi cial website.

In keep ing with our aim to con tain prop erty man age ment
costs and im prove the earn ing ca pac ity of the PIOJ, a Fa cil i -
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ties Man age ment Unit was es tab lished.  An En ergy & Re -
source Man age ment Com mit tee was also es tab lished, af ter an 
En ergy Au dit, to im prove en ergy ef fi ciency as well as re duce
ex pen di ture on elec tric ity, wa ter, pa per, fuel for fleet ve hi cles
and com mu ni ca tion (tele phones). 

In ad di tion to our an nual pub li ca tions, the ESSJ and the
JSLC, the re search pub li ca tion Is sues of Crit i cal So cial Con -
cern: Some In ves ti ga tions, which em a nated from the Pov -
erty Mon i tor ing and So cial Pol icy Anal y sis Programme
(PMSPS), was pub lished. This pub li ca tion co in cided with
the launch of the na tional pov erty maps-both con sump -
tion-based and un met ba sic needs, us ing the JSLC 2002 and
the Na tional Cen sus 2001 as their sources of data.

LOOK ING AHEAD

The year ahead will be a chal leng ing one as we adapt to the 
changed global and do mes tic, fi nan cial and eco nomic en vi -
ron ment in which we have to op er ate. There will be in creas -
ing de mands on the In sti tute even as we grap ple with re duced

bud get ary al lo ca tions.  There will be a re view of the In sti -
tute's or ga ni za tional struc ture and op er a tions to en sure
efficient assignment of staff.

In 2009, the PIOJ will con tinue to work to im prove the de -
liv ery of its core man date, which is to pro vide cred i ble and
timely pol icy and plan ning ad vice on so cial, eco nomic and
en vi ron men tal is sues and to man age ex ter nal co op er a tion ef -
fec tively. The Fi nal Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op -
ment Plan is also ex pected to be ta bled by the end of April
2009.

Wes ley Hughes
Di rec tor Gen eral
Plan ning In sti tute of Ja maica
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DI REC TOR GEN ERAL'S
SEC RE TAR IAT

T
he Di rec tor Gen eral’s Sec re tar iat (DGS) fo cuses on the
core func tions of pol icy and plan ning ad vice, ex ter nal
co op er a tion man age ment, ex ter nal mar ket ing and gen -

eral man age ment. These func tions rep re sent the Plan ning In -
sti tute of Ja maica’s (PIOJ) pri or ity ar eas which are: 

— pro vid ing pol icy and plan ning ad vice to the Gov ern -
ment of Ja maica (GOJ), which the Di rec tor Gen eral
sat is fies in his ca pac ity as Chief Eco nomic Ad vi sor to 
the GOJ;

— ne go ti at ing with Ja maica’s in ter na tional de vel op -
ment part ners (IDPs), which rep re sents the PIOJ’s
role as na tional au tho riz ing agency for the GOJ;

— ar tic u lat ing and com mu ni cat ing the stra te gic pri or i -
ties of the GOJ to the IDPs so that there is align ment
with official de vel op ment as sis tance (ODA) and the
ef fec tive and ef fi cient use of these re sources;

— in ter fac ing with other lo cal de vel op ment part ners
such as civil so ci ety; and

— keep ing the pub lic in formed of cur rent and emerg ing
lo cal is sues as well as abreast of global is sues which

have im pli ca tions for the at tain ment of na tional de -
vel op ment goals through ac tive en gage ment with the
Ja mai can me dia and other stake holders.

The ad min is tra tive and tech ni cal staff of the DGS sup port
the Di rec tor Gen eral to en sure that in for ma tion or pol icy ad -
vice is dis sem i nated in a timely, cost ef fec tive and ef fi cient
man ner to the GOJ and IDPs. The DGS em pha sizes ev i -
denced-based pol icy and seeks to proactively ad vise the GOJ.

LEAD ER SHIP AND OVER SIGHT

Since No vem ber 2005, the PIOJ has been oc cu pied with
the ar du ous and con sum ing task of pre par ing a long-term de -
vel op ment plan, Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op -
ment Plan to pro vide the road map for Ja maica to achieve
de vel oped coun try sta tus by 2030. This plan is con sis tent
with the PIOJ’s his tory of pre par ing five- and ten-year
development plans for the coun try. The aim of Vi sion
2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan is to make Ja -
maica the place of choice to live, work, raise fam i lies and
do busi ness.
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The Plan De vel op ment Unit (PDU) which is lo cated in the
Di rec tor Gen eral’s Sec re tar iat has been charged with the re -
spon si bil ity of pre par ing the Plan, en gen der ing buy-in
through wide spread con sul ta tions and in put from stake -
holders; and for the im ple men ta tion of the Plan. With this
man date, the PIOJ has, through out the course of the year
worked stead fastly to get the Draft Plan ap proved by both
Cab i net and the House of Par lia ment. 

In No vem ber 2008, the Cab i net and Par lia ment ap -
proved the Draft Na tional De vel op ment Plan and the
Medium Term Socio-Eco nomic Frame work (MTF)
2009–2012. This was achieved through the highly pro fes -
sional sup port pro vided by the Plan De vel op ment Unit
(PDU.)

The Di rec tor Gen eral was also in vited to Qa tar to pres ent
Ja maica’s ex pe ri ence with Vi sion 2030 Ja maica - Na tional
De vel op ment Plan as well as in di cate the im pli ca tions of the
Plan for Qa tar’s own de vel op ment plan ning goals.

POL ICY AND PLAN NING AD VICE

Through out the course of the year, four Quar terly Press
Brief ings were held. These Quar terly Press Brief ings served
a dual role of pro vid ing pol icy ad vice to the Gov ern ment
while in form ing the gen eral pub lic, es pe cially the busi ness
com mu nity, on the per for mance of the econ omy dur ing the
quar ter and short-term pro jec tions.

The Di rec tor Gen eral pro vided both daily and weekly
ad vice on the econ omy as well as more tar geted sec toral
analyses. This was achieved, ear lier in the year, through
weekly Post-Cab i net Press Brief ings, and later on through the 
Fi nan cial Cri sis Mon i tor ing Com mit tee. The Di rec tor Gen -
eral was also in volved in the ini tial dis cus sions to forge a new
So cial Part ner ship.

EX TER NAL CO OP ER A TION 
MAN AGE MENT

The Di rec tor Gen eral, in his ca pac ity as Al ter nate Gov er -
nor, rep re sented the Gov ern ment at a num ber of  meet ings
through out the year. These in cluded but are not lim ited to the:
Com mon wealth Fi nance Min is ters meet ing; IMF–World
Bank meet ings; Inter-Amer i can De vel op ment Bank meet -
ings; Ca rib bean De vel op ment Bank’s An nual Re treat; and
the IDP An nual Re treat, which seeks to en sure co her ence in
the plans of the IDPs vis-à-vis the stra te gic pri or i ties of the
GOJ.

The Di rec tor Gen eral, to wards the lat ter part of the year,
ad vo cated for a con certed debt re duc tion strat egy from our
IDPs, es pe cially within the con text of the global fi nan cial cri -
sis. Em pha sis was placed on the re la tion ship be tween high
debt to GDP ra tios and the crowd ing out of in vest ment in the

pro duc tive sec tors which drive growth and de vel op ment. The 
Di rec tor Gen eral also pro vided over sight to strat egy pa pers,
etc. which sought to ar tic u late the GOJ’s po si tion to en sure
that the lan guage of such doc u ments re flected the un der -
stand ing and in tent of the GOJ.

EX TER NAL MAR KET ING

Much of the Di rec tor Gen eral’s ex ter nal mar ket ing ac tiv i -
ties through out the year con cen trated on the pro mul ga tion of
the Na tional De vel op ment Plan in terms of pro vid ing vis i bil -
ity; en cour ag ing feed back; and sen si tiz ing as wide a cross
sec tion of the pub lic as pos si ble of the Plan, its vi sion and its
aims. The Di rec tor Gen eral led 10 con sul ta tions and also par -
tic i pated in in ter views with var i ous me dia houses.

The an nual Di a logue for De vel op ment Lec ture held in
No vem ber was the open ing cer e mony for the JSLC 20th An -
ni ver sary Con fer ence and was de liv ered by Pro fes sor Pat An -
der son and her co-au thor Mr Colin Wil liams. The ti tle was
‘The Con ver sa tion Be tween Sta tis tics and So cial Pol icy:
When We Lis ten, When We Don’t.’ The Lec ture ex plored
the nexus be tween ev i dence and policymaking; ana lys ing the
in stances of al most seam less co or di na tion and those in -
stances of dis cord (or a lack of con ver sa tion) be tween ev i -
dence and pol icy.

GEN ERAL MAN AGE MENT

The Di rec tor Gen eral pro vided con tin u ous lead er ship to
the Board of Di rec tors of the PIOJ and the Com mit tee of
Man age ment. The Di rec tor Gen eral sought to in ter face more
with staff in 2008. This was done at a num ber of lev els: up per
man age ment through the An nual Stra te gic Man age ment Re -
treat which es tab lished the pri or i ties of the PIOJ for 2009 and
aimed to en sure co her ence among the An nual Op er a tional
Plan, Cor po rate Plans, the An nual Bud get and In di vid ual
Work Plans; meet ings with the Man ag ers and Di rec tors of the 
Tech ni cal Di vi sions dur ing the fourth quar ter of the cal en dar
year; and quar terly staff meet ings.

On April 20, 2008, the Di rec tor Gen eral saw his vi sion of
the PIOJ hav ing its own home re al ized as the PIOJ moved to
the PIOJ build ing at 16 Ox ford Road. On June 4, 2008, there
was an of fi cial Open House and launch of the Eco nomic and
So cial Sur vey Ja maica (ESSJ) 50th An ni ver sary pub li ca -
tion. The Di rec tor Gen eral wel comed the Min is ter with port -
fo lio re spon si bil ity for the PIOJ, Prime Min is ter, The
Hon our able Bruce Golding.  

RE FLEC TIONS ON 2008

The Di rec tor Gen eral’s Sec re tar iat man aged a tre men dous 
vol ume of work dur ing 2008 due to the high level of col lab o -
ra tion within the In sti tute.
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PLAN DE VEL OP MENT UNIT

Vision 2030 Jamaica, National Development Plan 

T
he Plan De vel op ment Unit (PDU) in 2008 pre pared the
fi nal draft of Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op -
ment Plan and the draft Me dium Term Socio-Eco nomic

Pol icy Frame work (MTF) 2009–2012, which were ap proved
by Cab i net on No vem ber 17, 2008. This was fol lowed by the
ta bling of the cor re spond ing Min is try Pa per in Par lia ment on
No vem ber 18, 2008. 

This mile stone in the Plan for mu la tion pro cess fol lowed a
se ries of is land-wide pre sen ta tions and con sul ta tions on the
draft Plan, and re views and amend ments to the doc u ment. 

Vi sion 2030 Ja maica in te grates the econ omy, so ci ety and
en vi ron ment, un der pinned by gov er nance con sid er ations,
into a com mon plan ning frame and is con structed around a
Na tional Vi sion, “Ja maica, the place of choice to live, work,
raise fam i lies and do busi ness”. At tain ment of the Vi sion re -
lies on the achieve ment of the fol low ing four Na tional Goals:

— Ja mai cans are em pow ered to achieve their full est
po ten tial

— The Ja mai can so ci ety is se cure, co he sive and just

— Ja maica’s econ omy is pros per ous

— Ja maica has a healthy nat u ral en vi ron ment

These Goals are mu tu ally re in forc ing and syn er gis tic in
de sign, and their achieve ment can not be re al ized in iso la tion
from each other. Flow ing from these goals are 15 Na tional
Out comes which are each aligned to a range of Na tional
Strat e gies with in di ca tors and tar gets for the short, me dium
and long-term. Key ac tions for the first three years are
also in cluded. 

ACHIEVE MENTS

 1. Plan In te gra tion Pro cess 

PDU en gaged in a pro cess to iden tify Na tional Goals and
Na tional Out comes based on the Re sults-Based Man age ment 
(RBM) meth od ol ogy to fa cil i tate the in te gra tion of the 31
sec tor plans into the Na tional De vel op ment Plan. Cri te ria
were es tab lished to fa cil i tate the log i cal step of in te grat ing
the sec tor plans through the Na tional Out comes to the four
Na tional Goals. 

Meet ings were held with key stake holders from the
Cab i net Of fice, Min is try of Fi nance & the Pub lic Ser -
vice, and the Of fice of the Prime Min is ter to wards de -
fin ing the mon i tor ing and eval u a tion frame work for Vi sion

2030 Ja maica and the pro posed in sti tu tional ar range ments.

2. Sec tor Plans

Prep a ra tion con tin ued on the for mu la tion of the 31 sec tor
plans. Over 20 Task Force meet ings were held, and the PDU
col lab o rated with Min is tries and Agen cies to de ter mine the
spe cific ac tions for in clu sion in the Plan for years 1–3
(2009–2012). The PDU con ducted work shops for the
En ergy; La bour Mar ket and Pro duc tiv ity; and the In for -
ma tion, Com mu ni ca tions and Tech nol ogy (ICT) sec tors.
Each sec tor plan was re fined, ac tions and timelines de vel -
oped, and re spon si ble en ti ties iden ti fied. 

3. Me dium Term Socio-Eco nomic Pol icy
Frame work (MTF) 2009–2012

MTF 2009–2012 sets out the core pack age of pol i cies,
strat e gies and programmes pro posed by the Gov ern ment for
im ple men ta tion over the pe riod 2009–2012. It sup ports the
over all vi sion, goals and out comes of the long-term Vi sion
2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan and is the ve hi cle
that trans forms the long-term goals and out comes of the Plan
into short-term pri or i ties, strat e gies, programmes and pro -
jects. 

The PDU com pleted the draft of the first three-year
Me dium Term Socio-Eco nomic Pol icy Frame works
(MTFs) for the pe riod 2009–2012, which, along with the sec -
tor plans, pro vides the means by which the Plan will be
operationalized. 

4. Con sul ta tions and Pre sen ta tions 

Dur ing the year, over 30 pre sen ta tions and con sul ta tions
were held with key stake holders islandwide. Pub lic con sul ta -
tions were held with over 600 peo ple at the com mu nity level,
in clud ing Mem bers of Par lia ment, lo cal gov ern ment, and civil
so ci ety (in clud ing non-gov ern men tal or ga ni za tions (NGOs)
and com mu nity groups). These con sul ta tions cov ered the par -
ishes of St. James and Trelawny, Man ches ter and St. Eliz a beth, 
Westmoreland and Hanover, Clar en don, St. Catherine, Port -
land, Kingston and St. An drew, St. Thomas, and St. Ann and
St. Mary. These con sul ta tions were aimed at gal va niz ing
broad-based sup port and par tic i pa tion of a wide cross sec tion
of the so ci ety. Through this me dium, stake holders:

— were sen si tized to the Plan and plan ning pro cess; and

— shared ideas, and con cerns; and raised is sues
which in formed the draft sec tor plans and in te -
grated  Plan 
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Pre sen ta tions were made to var i ous groups on the Plan
de vel op ment pro cess, in clud ing, Trade Un ion Rep re sen ta -
tives, the Op po si tion Leader and Shadow Cab i net, Ja maica
Trade and In vest, EXIM Bank, grad u ate stu dents from the
Uni ver sity of the West In dies, the Eco nomic De vel op ment
Com mit tee of Cab i net, In ter na tional De vel op ment Part ners,
the Min is try of Na tional Se cu rity, and the Min is try of Fi nance 
& the Pub lic Ser vice. 

5. Ca pac ity Build ing

In rec og ni tion of the im por tance of build ing the ca pac ity
of the pub lic sec tor in RBM, the In sti tute for De vel op ment in
Eco nom ics and Ad min is tra tion (IDEA In ter na tional In -
sti tute) of Can ada was se lected to train se lected Min is -
tries, Departments and Agen cies in the RBMS meth od ol ogy
and to de velop in di ca tors and tar gets for 4 of the 15 Na tional
Out comes for the Plan.  

In or der to de velop the meth od ol ogy for in te grat ing the
sec tor plans into the Na tional Plan and to es tab lish the mon i -
tor ing and eval u a tion frame work within the RBM sys tem, a
lo cal Con sul tant was also hired to pre pare:

— In di ca tor As sess ment Tar get Frame work which in -
cludes 67 out come in di ca tors; 

— In di ca tor Frame work with Sec tor Level Out come 
Indicators; and

— In di ca tor Pro cess Frame work

6. Thresh old 21 (T-21) Ja maica

Pre sen ta tions on the model were made to the fol low ing:

— Min is ter of Fi nance and the Pub lic Ser vice;

— The Board of Di rec tors of the PIOJ;

— A work shop on Plan ning & De vel op ment in 
Su ri name; and

— Five Min is ters of Gov ern ment—Hon James Rob -
ertson; Hon. An drew Holness; Hon Aud ley Shaw;
Sen a tor the Hon Don Wehby;  and  Sen a tor the Hon
Dwight Nel son. 

Sce nar ios de vel oped by the model were in cor po rated into
the in te grated Na tional Plan. 

7. Other Ac tiv i ties
— Pre pared two Cab i net Sub mis sions on Vi sion 2030

Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan;

— Pre pared one Min is try Pa per on Vi sion 2030
Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan and the
MTF;

— Pre pared an Ex ec u tive Sum mary of  Vi sion 2030 Ja -
maica for the Prime Min is ter for a spe cial meet ing to
dis cuss prog ress of Plan de vel op ment;

— De vel oped an 11-min ute video on Vi sion 2030 Ja -
maica de pict ing the Plan de vel op ment pro cess and
the cur rent is sues af fect ing Ja maica; 

— Dis patched CDs with Vi sion 2030 Ja maica Theme
Song to all ra dio sta tions; 

— Worked with the So cial De vel op ment Com mis sion to
mo bi lize com mu ni ties to par tic i pate in is land-wide
con sul ta tions;

— De vel oped a 30-sec ond infomercial to pub li cize the
pub lic con sul ta tions;

— Pro duced four news let ters—Vi sion 2030 Ja maica
Up date— dis sem i nated via email and PIOJ website;

— Up loaded the draft  Plan on the PIOJ’s website to fa -
cil i tate re view and feed back; and

— Up loaded 25 com pleted draft sec tor plans on the PIOJ 
website

Dr Wes ley Hughes (right), Di rec tor Gen eral, PIOJ, has the com plete
at ten tion of Coun cil lor Sally Porteous (cen tre) dur ing a dis cus sion at the
Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan pub lic con sul ta tion,
Cecil Charlton Hall, Man ches ter, March 6, 2008. Lis ten ing also is
Su per in ten dent Mar tin Bayliss (left). 



ECO NOMIC PLAN NING AND
RE SEARCH 

D
ur ing 2008, the Eco nomic Plan ning and Re search
Di vi sion (EPRD) con tin ued its core func tion of mon i -
tor ing and eval u at ing macro-eco nomic and sec toral

per for mance, and pro vid ing timely and ap pro pri ate ad vice to
the Gov ern ment.  The stra te gic ob jec tive of the Di vi sion was
fur ther strength ened by its com pre hen sive programme of
eco nomic re search and anal y sis. The Di vi sion also played an
in te gral role in pro vid ing pol icy ad vice to Gov ern ment on
trade and trade-re lated is sues.

A ma jor area of fo cus dur ing the year was the Di vi sion’s
par tic i pa tion in the weekly meet ings of the Eco nomic Cri sis
Com mit tee, which mon i tored the im pact of the global fi nan -
cial and eco nomic cri sis on the Ja mai can econ omy.  Ad di tion -
ally, the Di vi sion made pre sen ta tions on the eco nomic cri sis
to a num ber of en ti ties which in cluded the Em bassy of the
Peo ple’s Re pub lic of China and the Ur ban De vel op ment
Cor po ra tion.   The Di vi sion also led discussion on the econ -
omy for the instution's par tic i pa tion in the dis cus sions with
the In ter na tional Mon e tary Fund, the World Bank and other
In ter na tional De vel op ment Part ners and with Rat ing Agen -
cies such as Stan dards and Poor.

The Di vi sion con tin ued its in volve ment in the for mu la tion 
of the Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan
through the ac tiv i ties of the fol low ing Task Forces:

— Macro-econ omy and Trade; 

— Ser vices;

— En ergy and Com mu ni ca tions;

— Trans port;

— Cre ative In dus tries and Cul ture;

— Wa ter;

— Ag ri cul ture;

— Min ing; 

— Tour ism; 

— Con struc tion;

— Man u fac tur ing;

— Sports; and

— In for ma tion and Com mu ni ca tion Tech nol ogy. 

The EPRD also un der took the lead role in the fol low ing
ar eas:

— T-21 Model De vel op ment:

— re fined and mod i fied var i ous mod ules of the T-21
model;

— ana lysed the im pli ca tion of the model on the na tional
bud get; 

— con ducted train ing ex er cises in the ap pli ca tion of the
T-21 model for all Di vi sions in the Plan ning In sti tute
of Ja maica; and

— pre sented the T-21 model to var i ous en ti ties, which
in cluded the De vel op ment Coun cil.

The Di vi sion col lab o rated with the Plan De vel op ment
Unit in:

— host ing con sul ta tions through the Na tional De vel op -
ment Plan Task Forces, and

— mod i fy ing and re fin ing var i ous sec tor mod ules to 
in cor po rate and ad dress is sues dis cussed in the
Task Forces.

The EPRD con trib uted to the macro-eco nomic, so cial and
en vi ron men tal as sess ment of Trop i cal Storm Gustav re lated
dam age on the Ja mai can econ omy. The Di vi sion also pre -
pared the fol low ing Pol icy Briefs:  Food Se cu rity Is sues in Ja -
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maica; Im pact of the US Fi nan cial Cri sis on the Lo cal
Econ omy; In vest ment Pro jects to Spur Growth; Price Move -
ments in key com mod ity im ports; and pre pared an ar ti cle
‘Ag ri cul tural De vel op ment Plan – Food Se cu rity’ for pub li -
ca tion in the JA Peo ple mag a zine, among oth ers.

The ma jor out puts re sult ing from in-depth eco nomic anal -
y sis and mon i tor ing in cluded:

— Monthly In fla tion Re port;

— Eco nomic and So cial Sur vey Ja maica;

— Quar terly Eco nomic Up date & Out look; 

— Quar terly Press Brief ings;

— Min is te rial Briefs on the sta tus of the econ omy;

— Dis cus sions with Mul ti lat eral Agen cies and other de -
vel op ment part ners; and

— Up dates and fore casts on the econ omy to in form rat -
ing agen cies.

Six teen chap ters cov er ing macro and in dus try per for -
mance were pre pared for the pub li ca tion, Eco nomic and So -
cial Sur vey Ja maica (ESSJ) 2007 .  Four edi tions of the
Eco nomic Up date & Out look (EU&O), which re viewed
quar terly eco nomic per for mance, were pro duced. The find -
ings of the EU&O in form the In sti tute’s quar terly press con -
fer ences.

Inter-sec toral col lab o ra tion be tween the Di vi sion and
other Di vi sions and with ex ter nal agen cies con tin ued in 2008.  

The EPRD par tic i pated in meet ings and sem i nars hosted by the
Sta tis ti cal In sti tute of Ja maica on the re vi sion of the Ja mai can Sys -
tem of Na tional Ac counts. This ex er cise in cluded the rebasing of
the con stant price es ti mates from 1996 to 2003 and the de vel op -
ment and im ple men ta tion of the Tour ism Sat el lite Ac count. The re -
vi sion is ex pected to re sult in a more com pre hen sive mea sure ment
of eco nomic ac tiv ity in the coun try.

EPRD’s staff con tin ued to pro vide tech ni cal ad vice to pub lic
and pri vate sec tor en ti ties through their in volve ment in a num ber of
in ter nal and ex ter nal com mit tees and work ing groups. These in -
cluded, among oth ers, par tic i pa tion in a se ries of meet ings and
sem i nars to re view and as sess the way for ward for the Ba nana,
Sugar, Co co nut, Dairy and Beef In dus tries. Among other com mit -
tees and work ing groups that the Di vi sion par tic i pated in were the
Na tional Ex port Strat egy Pro ject Team, the Ja maica Trade & Ad -
just ment Team and the Tar get Growth Com pet i tive ness Com mit tee 
for strength en ing Mi cro, the Small- & Me dium-sized en ter prises,
and the Pub lic Sec tor Mod ern iza tion Eco nomic Study & Pric ing
Strat egy.

TRAIN ING AND WORK SHOPS

Mem bers of the Di vi sion par tic i pated in and bene fited from a
num ber of train ing ac tiv i ties through courses, work shops and sem i -
nars which helped to im prove their re search and fore cast ing ca pa -
bil i ties. Some of these in cluded:

— In ter na tional Fi nance Net work Roundtable;

— Ca rib bean Mi cro Fi nance Net work Roundtable;

— Elev enth Con fer ence on Glob al iza tion De vel op ment Prob -
lems where the pa per, ‘Mi cro-com pa nies and Mi cro Fi -
nanc ing: Fi nan cial Com ple ment or New Busi ness’ was
pre sented;

— Re gional Work shop on Cli mate Risk in Ag ri cul ture, Mex -
ico;

— Re gional Work shop on Na tional Ac counts Sta tis tics ex am -
in ing the 1993 Sys tem of Ac count ing;

— Sem i nar on Macro-eco nomic De vel op ment, Peo ple’s Re -
pub lic of China;

— Next Gen er a tion Lead ers, Ko rea; 

— Na tional Course on De vel op ment Ef fec tive ness and Man -
age ment for Re sults;

— The Ca rib bean Re gional Pol icy Di a logue on Aid for Trade;

— Na tional Pro duc tiv ity Con fer ence 2008;

— Na tional Com pet i tive ness Roundtable on 'Re duc ing
Bu reau cratic Red Tape';

— Re sults Based Man age ment for Me dium and
Long-Term Plan ning; and

— Man age ment for De vel op ment Re sults.
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EX TER NAL CO OP ER A TION
MAN AGE MENT 

D
ur ing 2008, the Ex ter nal Co op er a tion Man age ment
(ECM) Di vi sion con tin ued to carry out its core func -
tions as fol lows: pro vid ing ad vice on the align ment of

ex ter nal re sources with the Gov ern ment's de vel op ment pri or -
ity ar eas; as sess ing the vi a bil ity of pro posed de vel op ment
pro jects and iden ti fy ing fund ing sources; co or di nat ing ex ter -
nal co op er a tion ac tiv i ties, as well as mon i tor ing the im ple -
men ta tion of pro jects and programmes fi nanced by the
In ter na tional De vel op ment Part ners (IDPs). The ac com plish -
ments of the Di vi sion were fa cil i tated by its four Units,
namely: Mul ti lat eral Fi nan cial; Bi lat eral Co op er a tion; Mul ti -
lat eral Tech ni cal Co op er a tion; and the Eu ro pean Un ion.

ECM sup ported the Gov ern ment in ne go ti at ing loans and
grants with bi lat eral and mul ti lat eral de vel op ment part ners in
or der to meet the coun try's de vel op ment ob jec tives. Dur ing
the pe riod, Gov ern ment in ten si fied its ef forts to se cure bud -
get sup port from mul ti lat eral agen cies in the form of grants
and con ces sion ary loans. Fund ing from the mul ti lat eral agen -
cies in creased by over 500.0 per cent com pared with 2007.
The ECM also worked closely with stake holders in a har mo -
nized and co or di nated ap proach in the uti li za tion of re sources 
in the pri or ity ar eas iden ti fied by the Gov ern ment.  

BI LAT ERAL CO OP ER A TION 

The Bi lat eral Unit man ages, mon i tors and co or di -
nates co op er a tion programmes with sev eral coun tries
in clud ing: Can ada, the United King dom, the United States
of Amer ica, South Ko rea, Ja pan and China. These
programmes com prised grants, loans and tech ni cal as sis tance 
fo cused on infrastructural de vel op ment, se cu rity, jus tice, ed -
u ca tion, health and ag ri cul ture. 

Re quests for as sis tance un der the programme with China
in creased sig nif i cantly dur ing the year as Gov ern ment en ti -
ties sought to ac cess loan fi nanc ing at the highly concessional 
terms of fered by the Chi nese Gov ern ment. Un der the
re gional and bi lat eral programmes with China, the
Unit identified pro jects in the ar eas of infrastructural de vel -
op ment, sports and jus tice for fund ing con sid er ation. Meet -
ings were con vened with rep re sen ta tives from China,
re sult ing in the sign ing of three grant agree ments and Let ters
of Ex change. Ad di tion ally, pub lic sec tor work ers bene fited
from short-term train ing in China in Man age ment of Of fi cial
De vel op ment As sis tance, Eco nomic and So cial Pol icy, as
well as Macro-eco nomic De vel op ment. 

The Unit com menced ne go ti a tions with the Ja pan Bank
for In ter na tional Co op er a tion for new pro jects in road in fra -
struc ture and san i ta tion. As the fo cal point for the Ja pan
Over seas Co op er a tion Vol un teers programme, the Unit ap -
proved the re cruit ment of 18 per sons who were de -
ployed for a two-year pe riod in the ar eas of in for ma tion
tech nol ogy, agriculture, health, and ed u ca tion. 

Un der the co op er a tion programme with the Gov ern ment
of South Ko rea, Re cords of Dis cus sions were signed as a re -
sult of re view meet ings con vened by the Unit, in volv ing the
Min is tries of Health and Ed u ca tion. Short-term train ing op -
por tu ni ties in South Ko rea were also iden ti fied in the fields of 
Fo ren sic Sci ence and Sus tain able De vel op ment.  

In 2008, the Unit com menced man age ment of the Ca na -
dian In ter na tional De vel op ment Agency (CIDA) funded pro -
ject for the In sti tu tional Strength en ing of the Plan ning
In sti tute of Ja maica. The two-year pro ject val ued at ap prox i -
mately $45.0 mil lion will fo cus on strength en ing PIOJ's ca -
pac ity for long-term sus tain able de vel op ment plan ning,
pol icy for mu la tion and mon i tor ing. As part of the con sul ta -
t i v e  p r o  c e s s  f o r  t h e  i m  p l e  m e n  t a  t i o n  o f  t h e
CARICOM-Canada re gional programme, the Unit was in -
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stru men tal in en sur ing that the Gov ern ment of Ja maica's
(GOJ) pri or i ties were in cor po rated into new pro ject de signs.
A mem ber of the Unit was se lected to be a part of the Tech ni -
cal Work ing Group (TWG) ne go ti at  ing the Can -
ada/CARICOM Trade and De vel op ment Agree ment.  The
Unit also fa cil i tated the ap proval of a grant for the Mod ern
Tech nol ogy and Ca pac ity Build ing Pro ject.

The United King dom Gov ern ment through the De part -
ment for In ter na tional De vel op ment (DFID) granted GOJ
debt re lief of £5.4 mil lion based on the Com mon wealth Debt
Ini tia tive Re port. The prep a ra tion of the re port was spear -
headed by the Unit and high lights the Gov ern ment's ef forts to 
meet spec i fied tar gets on which the as sess ment for debt re lief
is pre mised. 

The Unit col lab o rated with the United States Agency for
In ter na tional De vel op ment (USAID) in the prep a ra tion of its
new coun try strat egy for 2010-2014, with a view to hav ing
the strat egy re flect the Gov ern ment's priorities. 

Mem bers of the Unit took part in Bi-na tional meet ings
with Co lum bia, which re sulted in the sign ing of agree ments
for tech ni cal co op er a tion in the ar eas of trade and in vest ment; 
tech ni cal, sci en tific, ed u ca tional and cul tural co op er a tion
and se cu rity. Un der the do nor co or di na tion and har mo ni za -
tion ini tia tives, mem bers of the Unit rep re sented the GOJ at
pre pa ra tory meet ings in Nic a ra gua and Co lum bia for the
Third High Level Fo rum on Aid Ef fec tive ness. 

The Unit also fa cil i tated the as sign ment of more than 180
vol un teers, health and ed u ca tion per son nel from the United
States of Amer ica, Can ada, Ni ge ria and Cuba to gov ern ment
and non-gov ern men tal or ga ni za tions (NGOs) for pe ri ods of
up to two years.

Co or di na tion and mon i tor ing of pro jects con tin ued
through re views of im ple men ta tion plans, pro ject pro pos als
as well as the as sess ment of pro ject per for mance. In ad di tion,
the Unit par tic i pated in steer ing com mit tee meet ings and site
vis its, which are in stru men tal in mon i tor ing the prog ress of
pro ject ac tiv i ties. 

MUL TI LAT ERAL TECH NI CAL 
CO OP ER A TION (MTC)

The MTC co or di nates and man ages the port fo lio of pro -
jects sup ported by the United Na tions De vel op ment
Programme (UNDP), the United Na tions Chil dren's Fund
(UNICEF), the United Na tions Pop u la tion Fund (UNFPA),
UNAIDS, the Food and Ag ri cul ture Or ga ni za tion (FAO),
Pan Amer i can Health Or ga ni za tion (PAHO), the In ter na -
tional Atomic En ergy Agency (IAEA), the Com mon wealth
Fund for Tech ni cal Co op er a tion (CFTC) and the Or ga ni za -
tion of Amer i can States (OAS). 

The Unit con tin ued to as sist gov ern ment and NGOs in the
de vel op ment and fi nal iza tion of pro ject pro pos als and to sub -
mit them to suit able do nors for tech ni cal as sis tance and fi nan -
cial sup port.  Pri or ity was ac corded to pro jects which sought
to ad dress some of the most press ing so cial is sues such as
crime and vi o lence, youth un em ploy ment, the HIV/AIDS ep -
i demic and low pro duc tiv ity. Em pha sis was also placed on
pro jects which would en able Ja maica to ful fil its ob li ga tions
un der the Mil len nium De vel op ment Goals. 

In pur suit of the Gov ern ment's ob jec tive for more ef fec -
tive do nor co or di na tion and har mo ni za tion, the Unit co or di -
nated meet ings of de vel op ment part ners to dis cuss
multi-do nor strat e gies to sup port the mod ern iza tion of
Jamaica's Vi tal Sta tis tics and Civil Reg is tra tion sys tem and
the mod ern iza tion of the Ja maica Con stab u lary Force.  Do nor 
meet ings were also held to ad dress the de vel op ment of a com -
mu nity se cu rity strat egy for Ja maica.   

The Unit con trib uted to the de vel op ment of the UNDP
sup ported Vi o lence Pre ven tion, Peace and Sus tain able
Development Programme which is aimed at re duc ing armed
vi o lence by strength en ing the na tional se cu rity frame work
and en hanc ing com mu nity se cu rity mech a nisms.  As a part of
the Na tional Co or di nat ing and Steer ing Com mit tee for the
Small Grants Programme of the Global En vi ron ment Fa cil ity, 
the Unit pro vided ad vice for the se lec tion of pro jects which
re ceived fi nan cial sup port over the pe riod.  

  Due to the chronic short age of child psy chi a trists and the
in crease in the num ber of chil dren as vic tims and per pe tra tors 
of crime, the Unit re quested the ser vices of a child psy chi a -
trist from the Com mon wealth Fund for Tech ni cal Co op er a -
tion. An ex pert ar rived in Sep tem ber and will over two years
de velop a cur ric u lum for a grad u ate programme in child psy -
chi a try for the Med i cal Fac ulty of the University of the West
Indies.

As Na tional Li ai son Of fice for the programmes of the
OAS, the Unit man aged the de vel op ment of sev eral pro ject
pro pos als re ceived from gov ern ment and non-gov ern men tal
agen cies, to en sure their align ment with the OAS' Stra te gic
Plan for Part ner ship for In te gral De vel op ment for
2006-2009.  The fi nal  pro jects were sub mit ted to the Or ga ni -
za tion for fund ing con sid er ation.

The Unit fi nal ized and sub mit ted to the IAEA five na tional 
pro jects and in di cated Ja maica's in ter est in par tic i pat ing in 14 
re gional ini tia tives. Twenty ap pli ca tions were pro cessed for
var i ous schol ar ships, short-term fel low ships, study tours and
meet ings, and all were ac cepted and funded by the Agency. A
pro gram ming mis sion which sought to en cour age Ja maica to
adopt ra di a tion pro tec tion leg is la tion was hosted by the Unit
in May.

Port fo lio re views were held with the heads of mis sion of
the FAO, UNAIDS, UNEP, UNESCO Na tional Com mis sion
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and PAHO to de ter mine strat e gies for im prov ing the level of
col lab o ra tion be tween these or ga ni za tions and the PIOJ and
to dis cuss the rel e vance of the pro jects be ing im ple mented
with the stra te gic pri or i ties of the Gov ern ment.         

MUL TI LAT ERAL FI NAN CIAL 
IN STI TU TIONS (MFI)

The MFI Unit co or di nated and man aged the co op er a tion
programmes with the Inter-Amer i can De vel op ment Bank
(IDB), World Bank (WB) and the Ca rib bean De vel op ment
Bank (CDB).  The Unit mon i tored 38 loans which to talled
US$848.2 mil lion, grant sup port which amounted to
US$27.6 mil lion, and gov ern ment coun ter part fi nanc ing
which to talled US$711.2 mil lion.  The Unit's ef forts to carry
out the Gov ern ment's pol icy de ci sion of greater en gage ment
with Mul ti lat eral Fi nan cial Institutions, was re flected by the
im proved level of loan ap proval and dis burse ments, which at
De cem ber 2008 stood at US$307.1 mil lion.   

The Unit par tic i pated in the ne go ti a tions of 18 new loans
with a to tal value of US$555.4 mil lion.  This in cluded five
bud get sup port loans to tal ling US$320.0 mil lion of which ap -
prox i mately US$250.0 mil lion was dis bursed dur ing 2008. 
The in crease in bud get sup port fi nanc ing was re flec tive of
Gov ern ment's pol icy to se cure more of this type of as sis tance
from multilaterals. Eight loans to tal ling US$220.0 mil lion
were ne go ti ated with the IDB, while six loans which
amounted to US$170.4 mil lion were ne go ti ated with the
CDB. Four loans to tal ling US$165.0 mil lion were ne go ti ated
with the WB.  The Unit also played an in te gral part in ne go ti a -
tions of a US$300.0 mil lion, Li quid ity Programme for
Growth Sustainability to be im ple mented by the De vel op -
ment Bank of Ja maica (DBJ). 

Two con sul tants were en gaged to strengthen the

Unit's ef fort to mon i tor the com mit ments under the fol -
low ing bud get sup port programmes: the Ja maica
Competitiveness En hance ment Programme (JCEP), the
Pub lic Fi nan cial and Per for mance Man age ment Programmes 
(PFPMP) and the Ed u ca tion Re form Programme.  The en -
gage ment of con sul tants forms part of the over all mon i tor ing
mech a nism to be de vel oped to en sure a ho lis tic and co or di -
nated ap proach in the im ple men ta tion of all Bud get Sup port
Programmes.

The Unit co or di nated sev eral Mis sions, in clud ing those to
de sign and de velop, as well as ne go ti ate the loans men tioned
above. It also par tic i pated in sev eral teleconferences and
videoconferences to dis cuss project de sign and im ple men ta -
tion issues.

Ef forts con tin ued to ad dress im ple men ta tion con straints.
To this end, five port fo lio Re views, in volv ing Ex e cut ing
Agen cies, the Min is try of Fi nance and the Pub lic Ser vice, and 
the MFIs,  were held.  The Re view with the World Bank was
held to pres ent and ob tain feed back on an as sess ment of the
Coun try As sis tance Strat egy for the pe riod 2006-2009 and to
in form the de sign of the Coun try Part ner ship Strat egy (CPS)
for the pe riod 2009-2012. The Unit also pro vided ad vice for
ad dress ing im ple men ta tion con straints at sev eral Steer ing
Com mit tee Meet ings.  Briefs were also pro vided to the Of fice 
of the Prime Min is ter, the Min is try of Fi nance and the Pub lic
Ser vice as well as to the MFIs on the sta tus of the im ple men -
ta tion of the Port fo lio.

The Unit re viewed and pro vided eco nomic and fi nan cial
anal y sis of a num ber of pro pos als from Gov ern ment min is -
tries and agen cies.  In or der to strengthen the  Di vi sion's ca -
pac ity to un der take ef fec tive pro ject ap praisal, two mem bers
of the Unit par tic i pated in courses on pro ject ap praisal and
eval u a tion held in Bar ba dos, and Trin i dad and To bago.
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EU RO PEAN UN ION (EU) 

The ex e cu tion of the GOJ-Eu ro pean Un ion (EU) Co -
op er a tion Programme is the re spon si bil ity of the of fice
of the National Author is ing Of fi cer (NAO), which is lo cated
at the Plan ning In sti tute of Ja maica. The Hon our able Prime
Min is ter is the NAO for Ja maica.  In 2008, the co op er a tion
port fo lio con sisted of 16 programmes and pro jects to tal ling
€259.2 mil lion ($27.4 bil lion) in grant re sources. These
programmes and pro jects are fi nanced from the Eu ro pean
De vel op ment Fund (EDF) and the An nual Gen eral Bud get of
the EU.

A to tal of five Fi nanc ing Agree ments were signed by the
GOJ amount ing to €35.5 mil lion ($3.7 bil lion) for:

— EC Gen eral Bud get Sup port to Ja maica (An nual
Ac tion Programme Ac com pa ny ing Mea sures for
Sugar Pro to col Coun tries - Al lo ca tion 2007 for Ja -
maica) in the amount of €12.5 mil lion; 

— sup port to the Sugar Cane Sec tor in Ja maica - al lo ca -
tion 2007 in the amount of €12.5 mil lion; 

— 2007 EU Ba nana Sup port Programme for €2.97 mil -
lion; 

— two agree ments for Hur ri cane Dean Re ha bil i ta tion
As sis tance for a to tal of €7.5 mil lion, of which €5.0
mil lion was pro vided from the Ca rib bean Re gional
In dic a tive Programme (CRIP); and

— €2.5 mil l ion from the Na t ional  In dic a t ive
Programme. Pro ject briefs were also pre pared for
the sign ing and hand ing over cer e mo nies of these 
Fi nanc ing Agree ments.

For the re view pe riod, the Unit along with the Del e ga tion
of the Eu ro pean Com mis sion (EC) and Min is tries pre pared
the 2007 Joint An nual Re port, and also col lab o rated with var -
i ous Min is tries to pre pare and sub mit pro pos als for five
programmes, namely: 

— Se cu rity Sec tor Re form Programme (SSRP) - €33.0
mil lion;

— Debt Re duc t ion and Growth En hance ment
Programme (DRGEP) - €40.0 mil lion;

— EC Gen eral Bud get Sup port for Sugar 2008 - €9.0
mil lion;

— Sup port to the Sugar Cane Sec tor in Ja maica al lo ca -
tion 2008 - €9.8 mil lion; and

— 2008 EU Ba nana Sup port Programme (BSP) - €2.5
mil lion.

All five programmes were ap proved by the Eu ro pean
Com mis sion's Re view Com mit tee.  Prep a ra tion of both the
SSRP and the DRGEP in volved a year of in ten sive ne go ti a -
tions with the EC Del e ga tion on the con di tions to trig ger the
re lease of funds.  With the ex cep tion of the EU Ba nana Sup -

port Programme all are bud get sup port programmes, which is
in keep ing with the shift by the In ter na tional De vel op ment
Part ners away from the tra di tional pro ject mo dal ity.

 The Coun try Strat egy Pa per (CSP) 2008-2013 and
its ac com pa ny ing Na tional In dic a tive Programme was
signed by the Gov ern ment in late 2008. The to tal in dic a -
tive al lo ca tion for the 2008-2013 CSP is €110.0 mil lion while
an ad di tional €12.6 mil lion, rep re sent ing the B En ve lope is
avail able for un fore seen needs and emer gency as sis tance. 
Prep a ra tion of programmes un der the 2008-2013 CSP con -
tin ued with the de vel op ment of terms of ref er ences and the
launch ing of ten ders for the de sign of the EPA Trade Re lated
As sis tance pro ject and for im ple men ta tion of the Pov erty Re -
duc tion Programme II. 

As NAO, the Unit con tin ued to pro vide over sight to Seg -
ment III of the North ern Coastal High way Im prove ment Pro -
ject (NCHIP) and other infrastructural pro jects. The
con trac tor for NCHIP, Pihl and Sons Limited, com pleted ap -
prox i mately 54.4 km, 49.3 km and 49.2 km of sub-base, base
and binder as phalt sur face, re spec tively.  The Pagee, Stoney
and Wa ters River bridges, to gether with ma jor drain age
struc tures, were com pleted and opened to the gen eral pub lic.  

Sev en teen of the eigh teen roads un der the first phase of the 
In ter ven tion for Ru ral and Pa ro chial Roads Re ha bil i ta tion
and Main te nance programme were com pleted.  Un der the
Ru ral Wa ter Sup ply Pro ject II, the Hope Bay, Port land and
the Christiana/Spaldings, Man ches ter wa ter schemes were
com pleted, pro vid ing po ta ble wa ter to res i dents in the Hope
Bay and Christiana/Spaldings ar eas, re spec tively.  Con cept
de signs for the im prove ment of the Negril and Ocho Rios
Waste Wa ter Treat ment Plants were com pleted with the col -
lec tion of data for de tailed de signs.

In re sponse to the de struc tion caused by Trop i cal Storm
Gustav, and with the guid ance of the EC Del e ga tion, the Unit
was able to se cure  €3.9 mil lion for re ha bil i ta tion. The
amount of €1.9 mil lion  from the B En ve lope, will be dis -
bursed as bud get sup port and the CRIP pro vided €2.0 mil lion, 
which will be man aged by the WB and im ple mented by the
Ja maica So cial In vest ment Fund (JSIF). In col lab o ra tion with 
the EC Del e ga tion and key Min is tries, prep a ra tion of pro jects 
to ac cess funds from EC in ter na tional fa cil i ties, viz Food Fa -
cil ity (€5.9 mil lion) and Cli mate Change (€5 mil lion) com -
menced in late 2008.  Fa vour able con sid er ation was given by
the EC in Brussels to both sub mis sions.

The Unit pro cessed pay ment or ders and dis burse ment
files for bud get sup port programmes amount ing to €55.4 mil -
lion ($5.8 bil lion). Man age ment of the Co op er a tion
Programme con tin ues to be ex e cuted via close daily in ter ac -
tion with the EC Del e ga tion and Gov ern ment Min is tries and
agen cies through reg u lar monthly and quar terly steer ing
com mit tee meet ings, weekly site vis its and GOJ-EC Co op er -
a tion Programme Re view meet ings.
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SO CIAL POL ICY, PLAN NING
AND RE SEARCH 

T
he SPPRD con tin ued to dis charge its re spon si bil ity to
mon i tor the so cial sec tor, and to for mu late programmes
and pol i cies in the sec tor while also as sist ing in co or di -

nat ing and fa cil i tat ing their im ple men ta tion. Mile stones
achieved in 2008 in cluded the com mem o ra tion of the twen ti -
eth an ni ver sary of the con duct of the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv -
ing Con di tions (JSLC), and the com ple tion and launch of
na tional maps on pov erty and de pri va tion; and also the
JamStats website.  Other ma jor achieve ments in clude the ini -
ti a tion of an an nual la bour mar ket fo rum, the host ing of an in -
ter na tional work shop to gen er ate re li able es ti mates of
mor tal ity rates in Ca rib bean coun tries, and the com mence -
ment of a So cial Pro tec tion Pro ject with World Bank fund ing
sup port.  Work on Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op -
ment Plan con tin ued and saw to the com ple tion of the sec tor
plans in the so cial area.

The Di vi sion con tin ued to op er ate through five Units, viz:
Pop u la tion; Hu man De vel op ment; So cial De vel op ment and
Gen der; So cial Se cu rity and Wel fare; and Pol icy Re search. 
Their re spon si bil i ties cover a com pre hen sive range of sub ject 
mat ters for the so cial sec tor, in clud ing: de mog ra phy, health,
ed u ca tion and train ing, the la bour mar ket, wel fare, na tional
se cu rity, jus tice, gen der and vul ner a ble groups (for ex am ple,
chil dren, per sons with dis abil i ties and the el derly).  

The Di vi sion seeks to pro vide ev i dence-based pol icy and
plan ning ad vice, there fore, there is fo cus on the con duct, su -
per vi sion and pro mo tion of socio-eco nomic re search.  This
en com passes mon i tor ing in di ca tors of gen eral so cial
de vel op ment as well as car ry ing out in-depth in ves ti ga -
tion of selected is sues and pro mot ing the use of so phis ti -
cated data anal y sis within the pub lic sec tor.  High lights in this 
re gard in cluded the con struc tion of 20-year in di ces of so cial
well-be ing us ing data from the JSLC and the pub li ca tion of
re search pa pers pro duced by pub lic sec tor staff and co or di -
nated by SPPRD.

POL ICY AND PLAN NING

On go ing pol icy ad vice con tin ued to be pro vided to the
Gov ern ment through mem ber ship on the Hu man Re sources
Com mit tee of Cab i net.  Sim i larly, the Kingston City Cen tre
Im prove ment Com pany was ad vised through mem ber ship on 
its Board of Di rec tors.  Some other ar eas are out lined be low.

Vul ner a ble Groups

The Di vi sion con tin ued to con trib ute to the na tional em -
pha sis on pro mot ing early child hood de vel op ment through:
rep re sen ta tion on the Board of the Early Child hood Com mis -
sion and its sub-com mit tees; con tri bu tion to the fi nal iza tion
of the Na tional Stra te gic Plan and Op er a tional Plan for Early
Child hood, and the World Bank-funded In te grated Early
Child hood De vel op ment Pro ject; in puts to the Na tional
Parenting Pol icy which was re viewed by Cab i net; and
par tic i pa tion on the Work ing Group for es tab lish ment
of the National Parenting Sup port Com mis sion which will
be re spon si ble for the im ple men ta tion of the pol icy.  

Ad vice on the is sue of chil dren and vi o lence was pro vided
through par tic i pa tion on the Task Force es tab lished by the
Prime Min is ter as a rapid re sponse mea sure to ad dress in -
creas ing cases of child abuse.  The Di vi sion fur ther con trib -
uted to the pro mo tion of eq uity and in clu sive ness by
par tic i pa tion on the Na tional Ad vi sory Board on Dis abil ity
and the Na tional Coun cil for Se nior Cit i zens.

National Security

In re la tion to na tional se cu rity, SPPRD con tin ued to pro -
vide tech ni cal ad vice to the Con ver gence Group of the Com -
mu nity Se cu rity Ini tia tive Pro ject and par tic i pated in
meet ings with In ter na tional De vel op ment Part ners to pro -
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mote har mo nized col lab o ra tion with the Gov ern ment.  At the
re quest of the Prime Min is ter, an in ves ti ga tion was con ducted  
into the sit u a tion in the Fletcher’s Land com mu nity, and as -
sis tance was pro vided for a pro ject (started in No vem ber) to
as sess the ef fec tive ness of Com mu nity Se cu rity and Trans -
for ma tion Programmes im ple mented in Ja maica in re cent
years.

Gend er

Gen der is sues in re la tion to le gal mat ters were pri mar ily
ad dressed by rep re sen ta tion on the Work ing Group for
Women’s Re pro duc tive Health and Rights, where con tri bu -
tion was made, for ex am ple, to de lib er a tions of the Joint Se -
lect Com mit tee on Abor tion; ad di tion ally, in puts were made
to the for mu la tion of the Sex ual Of fences Bill.  As sis tance
was pro vided to the Kingston and St. An drew Ac tion Fo rum
to wards a pa ter nity leave pol icy and the in cor po ra tion of gen -
der con sid er ations in man ag ing con flict in in ner-city com mu -
ni ties.

A lead role was played by the PIOJ Gen der Mainstreaming 
Com mit tee which fo cused on build ing aware ness by con -
duct ing a work shop on ‘Gen der and the En vi ron ment’ in col -
lab o ra tion with the Na tional En vi ron ment and Plan ning
Agency. An other work shop, which sought to build ca pac ity
in the In sti tute for em ploy ing gen der anal y sis in de vel op -
ment, was held.

La bour Mar ket/Human De vel op ment

The an nual re view of the Na tional Min i mum Wage Rate
took place with the cus tom ary in put of the Di vi sion to the Ad -
vi sory Com mis sion. The Uni ver sity of Tech nol ogy was also
pro vided with ad vice on the ap proach to mak ing la bour mar -
ket pro jec tions, while on go ing ad vice was pro vided to boards 
and com mit tees on which SPPRD had stand ing rep re sen ta -

tion, in clud ing:

— Ter tiary Com mis sion Steer ing Com mit tee;

— HEART Trust/ NTA Life Long Learn ing Fo cus
Group;

— Ja maica Youth Em ploy ment Net work Steer ing Com -
mit tee;

— Cor rec tional Ser vices Ed u ca tion Com mit tee; and

— In de pend ent School Pol icy Com mit tee.

Programme And Pro ject De vel op ment

The Di vi sion con tin ued to spear head the de vel op ment of a 
programme for the mod ern iza tion of the vi tal sta tis tics and
civil reg is tra tion sys tem. Be sides di a logue with pro spec tive
funders/do nors and draft ing of pro pos als, there was co or di -
na tion of and par tic i pa tion in an inter-agency study tour to
Uru guay.  Ad di tion ally, SPPRD played a cen tral role in the
suc cess ful  launch of the GOJ/IBRD So cial Pro tec tion Pro -
ject and the Steps-to-Work Pi lot Pro ject, both of which are
be ing im ple mented by the Min is try of La bour and So cial Se -
cu rity along with other gov ern ment agen cies.  Un der the for -
mer pro ject, the Di vi sion has re spon si bil ity for de sign ing a
com pre hen sive so cial pro tec tion strat egy, and ini ti ated its
work on this com po nent.

Con tri bu tion was made to the fi nal iza tion of the Youth De -
vel op ment Pro ject to be funded by the Inter-Amer i can De vel -
op ment Bank (IDB) and to the for mu la tion of a GOJ-funded
pro ject to en hance the em ploy abil ity of youth through mem -
ber ship on the Spe cial Youth Em ploy ment and Train ing Pro -
ject.

In re sponse to the global food cri sis, two work shops were
held in volv ing multi-lat eral agen cies and steps were taken to
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de sign the So cial Pro tec tion Sup port to the Food Cri sis Pro -
ject to as sist tar geted pop u la tion groups with fund ing from
the IDB.

SPPRD con tin ued to have rep re sen ta tion on the Na tional
Ad vi sory Coun cil on Lo cal Gov ern ment Re form which was
re con vened by the new ad min is tra tion.

PROGRAMME IM PLE MEN TA TION
COOR DI NA TION AND MON I TOR ING

The Pov erty Mon i tor ing So cial Pol icy Anal y sis Pro ject
(PMSPA) was com pleted by the Di vi sion with the ob jec tives
hav ing been fully met.  Sustainability of the for mal train ing
courses was ob tained through col lab o ra tion with the Man -
age ment In sti tute for Na tional De vel op ment (MIND) which
com menced of fer ing the programme in Jan u ary 2009.

The JamStats Pro ject was con tin ued with the up dat ing of
the da ta base to 2008, which was launched along with the pro -
ject’s first website.  There was also pro mo tion of the use of
the da ta base through dis sem i na tion of ma te ri als; train ing of
train ers; sen si ti za tion and train ing of po ten tial us ers, such as,
teach ers and stu dents; and co or di na tion of the pro duc tion of
sec toral da ta bases—the ed u ca tion sec tor (EduStats) was also
launched.  Sup port was also pro vided to re gional ini tia tives to 
in tro duce a sim i lar da ta base.

Co or di na tion of na tional ef forts in man ag ing la bour mar -
ket in for ma tion con tin ued with the Di vi sion as Chair and
Sec re tar iat of the La bour Mar ket In for ma tion Tech ni cal Ad -
vi sory Com mit tee.

Col lab o ra tion con tin ued on the im ple men ta tion of the
Coun try Programmes of In ter na tional De vel op ment Part -
ners.  For ex am ple, there was UNICEF’s 2008–2012
Programme where there was spe cific re spon si bil ity for Ad -
vo cacy and Pub lic Pol icy, as well as for the So cial In vest ment 
for Chil dren Ini tia tive. In re la tion to the lat ter, SPPRD co or -
di nated the pub li ca tion of a re view of Gov ern ment’s ex pen di -
ture on chil dren, In vest in our Chil dren, Build our Na tion. 
Sim i larly, there was on go ing in put into the UNFPA/EC Joint
Programme on Sex ual and Re pro duc tive Health for Ja maica;
while a lead ing role was played by the Di vi sion in ac tiv i ties
for com mem o ra tion of UNFPA World Pop u la tion Day, July
11; and the launch of the UNFPA State of  World Pop u la tion
Re port, 2008.

CON FER ENCES 

SPPRD or ga nized and hosted three con fer ences.  Through 
col lab o ra tion with UNICEF and the UN Inter-Agency Group
on Child Mor tal ity Es ti ma tion (IGCME) a work shop was
con vened in volv ing rep re sen ta tives lo cally, and from Belize,
Trin i dad and To bago, and Guy ana to clar ify and agree on the
meth od ol o gies and data needs for mor tal ity es ti ma tion by the

IGCME.  Sec ondly, the JSLC 20th An ni ver sary Con fer ence
held un der the theme ‘Fram ing So cial De vel op ment through
Re search’ was a high light of the year and was at tended by
over 270 per sons.  An an nual la bour mar ket fo rum was ini ti -
ated with the theme ‘Align ing Ed u ca tion and Train ing to Jobs 
and the Ja mai can La bour Mar ket’.

Par tic i pa tion in in ter na tional fora by staff mem bers, in -
cluded:

— Fo rum to Pro mote Child Friendly Bud get ing in the
Brit ish Over seas Ter ri to ries: ‘In vest in our Chil dren
To day … Change Our To mor row’, in Bar ba dos, Sep -
tem ber 17–18, 2008;

— Forty-First Ses sion of the UN Com mis sion on Pop u -
la tion and De vel op ment (CPD), New York, April
7–11, 2008;

— Two meet ings of the PetroCaribe De vel op ment Fund, 
Cuba, April 2008 and Oc to ber 2008, re spec tively;
and

— Work shop on So cial Pro tec tion for the El derly, Port
of Spain, Trin i dad and To bago, March 2008.

MI GRA TION

A spe cial area of con cern was mi gra tion. In ter na tional
fo cus was re flected in the con ven ing of var i ous fora some
of which were at tended by SPPRD staff, namely:

— Or ga ni za tion of Amer i can States (OAS) An nual
Amer i cas Pro ject Re gional Work shop on ‘Ur ban Mi -
gra tion in the Amer i cas: Plan ning for the Fu ture’,
Rice Uni ver sity, Texas, De cem ber 4–6, 2008; and

— Sec ond Meet ing of the Global Fo rum on In ter na tional 
Mi gra tion and De vel op ment, Ma nila In ter na tional
Con ven tion Cen tre, Ma nila, Phil ip pines, Oc to ber
27–30, 2008.   The Di vi sion also con tin ued to per -
form the role as na tional Fo cal Point for the Fo rum in
Ja maica and was re spon si ble for plan ning and or ga -
niz ing na tional par tic i pa tion.

In ad di tion, there was rep re sen ta tion at the Re gional Sem -
i nar on Mi gra tion and Hu man Traf fick ing in the Ca rib bean,
held in Ja maica, No vem ber 27–28 and or ga nized jointly by
Friedrich Ebert Stiftung (FES) Ja maica, the East ern Ca rib -
bean and the Do min i can Re pub lic.  

There was in volve ment in mi gra tion re lated stud ies with a
da ta base (1950–2007) on mi gra tion to and from Ja maica pre -
pared by SPPRD; a study on ‘Chil dren in Ja maica: The Im -
pact of Mi gra tion and Re mit tances’ was or ga nized and
con tracted out; and anal y sis by the Uni ver sity of the West In -
dies of the JSLC Re mit tance Mod ule ar ranged (‘Ja maica’s
Re mit tance Ex pe ri ence: Ev i dence from the 2006 Sur vey of
Liv ing Con di tions’). There was also as sess ment of the so cial
and eco nomic im pact of em i gra tion on Ja maica as part of a
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team work ing on an in ter na tional study (‘De vel op ment on the 
Move’) or ga nized by the Global De vel op ment Net work
(GDN) and the In sti tute for Pub lic Pol icy Re search (IPPR). 
Fi nally, SPPRD is a mem ber of the na tional co or di nat ing
body for the EC/UN Joint Mi gra tion and De vel op ment Ini tia -
tive which tar gets civil so ci ety or ga ni za tions for pro ject pro -
pos als.

TRAIN ING

Train ing was pro vided to mem bers of staff through
courses of fered in the United King dom, China and Is rael. 
The Global Work shop on Pol icy Anal y sis Tech niques Re -
lated to Child Pov erty in Southampton, Au gust 18–29, pro -
vided the train ing nec es sary for Ja maica to par tic i pate in a
Global Child Pov erty and Dis par ity Study be ing co or di nated
by UNICEF with sched uled com ple tion in 2009.  ‘The Eco -
nomic and So cial Pol icy Con sult ing Programme’ was spon -
sored by the Peo ple’s Re pub lic of China and or ga nized by the
Hu man Re source Study and Train ing Cen tre of De vel op ment
Re search. ‘Elim i nat ing Ru ral Pov erty–The Is raeli De vel op -
ment Ex pe ri ence’, was con ducted by the Negev In sti tute for
Strat e gies of Peace and De vel op ment.  Lo cal train ing was
also pro vided to staff in So cial Re search Meth ods, the ma nip -
u la tion of the JSLC da ta base and T-21 User In ter face Train -
ing.

RE SEARCH

A wide range of re search in ves ti ga tions were co or di nated
or con ducted by the Di vi sion.  These in cluded:

— prep a ra tion of a re port De vel op ment and State of the

Art of Adult Learn ing and Ed u ca tion: Na tional Re -
port of Ja maica for the Ja maica Foun da tion for Life -
long Learn ing;

— con struc tion of in di ces of so cial well-be ing for
health, ed u ca tion, hous ing, con sump tion, de mog ra -
phy and wel fare as well as an over all in dex, us ing the
20-year time-se ries from the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv -
ing Con di tions; the find ings were ana lysed in a re port 
pre pared by Dr Mi chael Witter, ‘The Changes in the
Socio-eco nomic Con di tions of Ja mai can House -
holds over the years 1989–2006’;.

— prep a ra t ion of a re port  on the fac tors af fect -
ing the Infant Mor tal ity Rate in Ja maica.

— pro duc tion of a com pen dium of four re search pa pers
– Is sues of Crit i cal So cial Con cern: Some In ves ti ga -
tions pre pared by pub lic sec tor staff trained un der the
PMSPA which was co or di nated by the SPPRD; and

— pro duc tion of two na tional pov erty maps us ing, Con -
sump tion and Un sat is fied Ba sic Needs in di ca tors to
rep re sent a fine spa tial disaggregation of the coun try
into 826 com mu ni ties.

PUB LI CA TIONS AND PRE SEN TA TIONS

Pre sen ta tions were made to a va ri ety of groups/con fer -
ences/in sti tu tions to tal ling over 30.  These in cluded:

— HKA Ca reer Sym po sium; Choices Ca reer Expo; and
UWI Ca reer Fair;

— 17th An nual Con fer ence of the Joint Com mit tee for
Ter tiary Ed u ca tion;
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— HEART/NTA’s Ca reer De vel op ment Ser vices
Re treat, Life long Learn ing Pub lic Fo rum and
Con fer ence, and Board Re treat;

— Ca rib bean Knowl edge and Learn ing Net work Coun -
try Con sul ta tion;

— Tech ni cal High Schools’ Prin ci pals As so ci a tion; and
six sep a rate High Schools;

— ‘Gen der,  Pop u lar  Cul ture & Sex u al  i ty’ to
CARIMAC/UWI stu dents of the course – Gen der,
Me dia and De vel op ment; 

— ‘Im pact of Gen der Im bal ance on Em ploy ment,
Un em ploy ment and En tre pre neur ship’, Fo rum
of the Institute of Char tered Ac coun tants of Ja maica;

— ‘Cul ture and Gen der in De vel op ment Plan ning: Key
Con sid er ations’, for UNFPA/PIOJ Town Hall Meet -
ing on State of World Pop u la tion Re port, Cul ture,

Gen der and Hu man Rights;

— ‘Pov erty Trends and Is sues in Ja maica’, Grameen
Bank Con fer ence; and

— ‘So cial Pol icy De vel op ment’ to the North ern Ca rib -
bean Uni ver sity. 

The Di vi sion pro duced and pub lished two is sues of the
La bour Mar ket In for ma tion News let ter; one cov er ing ‘An
Anal y sis of Stu dents’ Per for mance in CSEC Ex am i na tions,
2003–2007’, and the other ‘The Stu dents’ Loan Bu reau: Fi -
nanc ing Higher Ed u ca tion’; and ‘Ja maica’s Work Per mit Re -
gime Ex am ined’. The JSLC 2006 and 2007 Re ports were
pub lished and launched, while six chap ters were pre pared by
SPPRD for the ESSJ 2007.  JA Peo ple Mag a zine was pub -
lished with a fo cus on Gen der and De vel op ment and a sub se -
quent edi tion fo cus ing on Food Se cu rity was be ing pre pared
for pub li ca tion.



SUS TAIN ABLE
DE VEL OP MENT AND
RE GIONAL PLAN NING

T
he man date of the SDRPD is to en sure the in te gra tion of
sus tain able de vel op ment prin ci ples into the pol icy for -
mu la tion and de ci sion-mak ing pro cess.  

MAIN OB JEC TIVES

The Di vi sion’s man date was pur sued un der four broad
head ings, namely: Pol icy Plan ning, Programme Mon i tor ing
and Co or di na tion; Ca pac ity Build ing; Data/In for ma tion
Man age ment and Re port ing; and Sci ence and Tech nol -
ogy. Spe cific em pha sis was placed on the prep a ra tion
of the National De vel op ment Plan (NDP), ur ban and re -
gional plan ning, di sas ter mit i ga tion, build ing ca pac ity in the
use of Geo graphic In for ma tion Sys tems (GIS) Tech nol ogy
and dam age as sess ment tools, and in creas ing aware ness of
sus tain able de vel op ment prin ci ples. 

MAIN ACHIEVE MENTS

In the area of di sas ter mit i ga tion and plan ning, the fol low -
ing were achieved:

— The Di vi sion led the pro cess of as sess ment and prep -
a ra tion of the Macro-Socio-Eco nomic and En vi ron -

men tal Im pact of Trop i cal Storm Gustav on Ja maica.
The re port which was sub mit ted to Cab i net, Par lia -
ment and In ter na tional De vel op ment Part ners pro -
vided the in for ma tion base for the prep a ra tion of
pro jects for re ha bil i ta tion and re con struc tion ac tiv i -
ties.  

— The Di vi sion or ga nized and hosted a two-day Di sas -
ter Im pact As sess ment work shop for over 50 per sons
from some 30 or ga ni za tions. The train ing was sup -
ported by four ex perts from the Eco nomic Com mis -
sion for Latin Amer ica and the Ca rib bean (ECLAC)
and sought to re in force some of the the o ret i cal con -
cepts re lated to the vul ner a bil i ties faced by small is -
land states like Ja maica.  An out growth of the train ing 
was the es tab lish ment of an Im pact As sess ment Core
Team. A three-day work shop was also or ga nized and
con ducted for the team.

— A mem ber of the Di vi sion’s staff joined the ECLAC
team in con duct ing Im pact As sess ment for the is lands 
of Turks and Caicos, and Cayman af ter Hur ri canes
Ike and Paloma, re spec tively.

— De sign of three stud ies for Hur ri cane Dean pro jects
were fi nal ized and sub mit ted to the World Bank
through the Ja maica So cial In vest ment Fund (JSIF)
for fund ing.  The stud ies are be ing funded by the
World Bank un der the Hur ri cane Dean Emer gency
Re sponse Loan.

Achieve ments in the area of pol icy and programme de vel -
op ment in cluded the fol low ing:

— Two pro ject pro pos als and sup port ing doc u ments 
de vel oped and sub mit ted to the Ca rib bean De -
velopment Bank and the Eu ro pean Un ion in sup port
of fund ing re quests for the fol low ing:

– Prep a ra tion of the Na tional Spa tial Plan to pro vide
the spa tial frame work for guid ing the lo ca tion and
reg u la tion of planned de vel op ments em a nat ing
from the NDP and to wards the achieve ment of Vi -
sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan. 
The pro ject is sched uled for board ap proval by
mid-2009 and is to be im ple mented in as so ci a tion
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with the Na tional En vi ron ment and Plan ning
Agency, Cab i net Of fice and the Of fice of the Prime 
Min is ter; and

– A cli mate change re lated pro ject un der the EU
Global Cli mate Change Al li ance fa cil ity.  The ob -
jec tive of the pro ject is to min i mize risks as so ci -
ated with nat u ral haz ards as an adap tive mea sure to 
cli mate change and con trib ute to se cure live li -
hoods and re duc tion of vec tor-borne and wa -
ter-borne dis eases. 

— The sub mis sion of an Ac tion Plan (to UNESCO) for
the UNESCO/Ja maica Sci ence, Tech nol ogy & In no -
va tion Ad vi sory Com mit tee. The Ac tion plan doc u -
ments Ja maica’s pri or ity ar eas for S&T ad vance ment
in line with UNESCO’s goals and bud get ary guide -
lines for 2010–2011;

— Five Task Forces un der the Na tional De vel op ment
Plan ser viced with staff, pro vid ing sup port as tech ni -
cal sec re tar ies at ap prox i mately 24 meet ings and 4
con sul ta tions; and

— Tech ni cal as sis tance pro vided to the Pov erty Map -
ping Ex er cise through the prep a ra tion of con sump -
tion and un sat is fied ba sic need pov erty maps and
post ers for the launch of the pov erty map and sub se -
quent sale of pov erty map re lated prod ucts.

OTHER ACHIEVE MENTS/AC TIV I TIES

The Di vi sion pre pared: one Cab i net Sub mis sion, one
Min is try Pa per and one Min is te rial Brief and tech ni cal com -
ments on 23 pol i cies, Draft Bills, terms of ref er ences, coun try 
strat e gies, and pro jects. In ad di tion, tech ni cal ad vice was pro -
vided on an on go ing ba sis through par tic i pa tion in a num ber
of coun cils and committees.  Among them: 

— Land In for ma tion Coun cil of Ja maica

— Na tional In te grated Wa ter shed Man age ment Coun cil

— Na tional Di sas ter Com mit tee

— CVSS Ex ec u tive and Plan ning & Re search Com mit -

tees

— Sci en tific Re search Coun cil Con fer ence Plan ning

Com mit tee

— Na tional Bioethics Steer ing Com mit tee

— Haz ard Mit i ga tion Steer ing Com mit tee 

— LICJ GIS Train ing Com mit tee

— Land Pol icy Re view Com mit tee

— Pro tected Ar eas Steer ing Com mit tee

— Land Deg ra da tion Com mit tee

— De vel op ment Ap prov als Pro cess Pro ject

— Squat ter Man age ment Pol icy Steer ing Com mit tee 

— Na tional Hous ing Pol icy Com mit tee

— Cab i net Sub-com mit tee on En vi ron men tal En force -

ment 

— In te grated Wa ter shed Man age ment Steer ing Com -

mit tee

— Scrap Metal In dus try Com mit tee

— Palisadoes Re ha bil i ta tion Com mit tee

— Hur ri cane Dean Emer gency Loan Steer ing Com mit -

tee

Mem bers of staff par tic i pated in a num ber of mis sions and
spe cial meet ings in clud ing:

— OAS Non-per ma nent Mis sion eval u a tion of Pro jects
on Sci ence, Tech nol ogy and De vel op ment in Wash -
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ing ton DC, USA.  Pro jects eval u ated were in the ar eas 
of bio tech nol ogy, waste man age ment, re new able en -
ergy, en tre pre neur ship and foresighting and in no va -
tion road-map ping tech niques;

— High Level Roundtable on In ter na tional Co op er a tion
for Sus tain able De vel op ment in the Ca rib bean; and

— IDB and World Bank En ergy Pro mo tion Mis sion.

Other ac tiv i ties in cluded GIS tech ni cal sup port, train ing
and ser vices pro vided to the Ru ral En ter prise Ag ri cul ture &
Com mu nity Tour ism (RE ACT) Pro ject; The Post and Tele -
com mu ni ca tions Di vi sion; The Land In for ma tion Coun cil;
The Early Child hood Com mis sion; Mex i can Em bassy; The
Min is try of Ed u ca tion and the Jamaica Social Investment
Fund (JSIF).

PUB LI CA TIONS/PA PERS

The SDRPD pre pared or con trib uted to the fol low ing:

— Eco nomic and So cial Sur vey  Ja maica, 2007

— Hous ing Chap ter in the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing
Con di tions 2007

— Sus tain able De vel op ment e-news let ter de signed, pre -
pared and posted on PIOJ’s website 

Re search and dis cus sion pa pers on:

— Sex u ally Trans mit ted In fec tions and In equal ity;

— Risk per cep tion, land use strat e gies and land slide vul -
ner a bil ity; and

— E-waste (with the as sis tance of a stu dent in tern).

PRE SEN TA TIONS

SDRPD par tic i pated in a num ber of fora and made pre sen -
ta tions in clud ing the fol low ing:  

— The find ings of the Res i den tial End-Use En ergy Sur -
vey at the PCJ En ergy Fo rum; 

— ‘Wa ter & De vel op ment’ at work shop con ducted by
the Clar en don Par ish Coun cil;

— ‘De vel op ment Trends in Ja maica’s Coastal Ar eas and 
the Im pli ca tions for Cli mate Change’ at the 10th An -
nual Eco nomic Con fer ence on Glob al iza tion and
Prob lems in De vel op ing Coun tries; 

— ‘GIS Im ple men ta tion, Op por tu ni ties and Lim i ta -
tions’ at the Ja maica In sti tute of Plan ners (JIP) Stake -
holders Con sul ta tion on ‘The Ap pli ca tion of Ur ban
and Re gional Plan ning Tools for Sus tain able De vel -
op ment’; and 

— Ca reers in GIS for the PIOJ Pro mo tion of Pub li ca -
tions in St. Ann and St. James.

CON FER ENCES AND WORK SHOPS 

Mem bers of the SDRPD par tic i pated in ap prox i mately 22
work shops, sem i nars and spe cial meet ings in clud ing the
following:

— Ja maica’s Green House Gas In ven tory work shop;

— Re sults Based Man age ment Work shop;

— Ac tion Plan ning Work shop for the Linstead De vel op -
ment Area De vel op ment Plan;

— Na tional Met Ser vice 2nd Na tional Com mu ni ca tion –
Vul ner a bil ity and Ad ap ta tion for Wa ter Re sources
and Ag ri cul ture;

— Work shop in prep a ra tion of a re gional di sas ter risk
man age ment strat egy for sus tain able tour ism;

— UNDP–ODPEM Sym po sium – Di sas ter Risks for 
Ja maica’s Ur ban Ar eas: Im pli ca tions for Pol icy
and Ac tion;  

— Work shop on the As sess ment of Ja maica’s Co coa In -
dus try;

— Work shop to fur ther ex plore plan ning is sues af fect -
ing de vel op ment on Ja maica hosted by the JIP, Of fice
of the Prime Min is ter and Cab i net Of fice;

— S&T Foresighting and In no va tion Map ping Work -
shop (Saint Lu cia);

— GIS Week of Ac tiv i ties;

— En ergy Pol icy Work shop – Im pact on the En vi ron -
ment; and 

— Work shop to pro vide feed back on the Gap Anal y sis
Study in Prep a ra tion for a Data Shar ing and Pric ing
Pol icy.  

TRAIN ING

Staff of the Di vi sion par tic i pated in the fol low ing train ing
courses:

— En ergy Di ver si fi ca tion: Con ver sion to LNG and ap -
pli ca tions of nu clear tech nol o gies in in dus try, health,
ag ri cul ture and en vi ron ment;

— Mainstreaming Cli mate Change in De vel op ment
Strat e gies, Pro grams and Pro jects spon sored by
USAID;

— Elim i nat ing Ru ral Pov erty: The Is raeli De vel op ment
Ex pe ri ence; 

— Re fresher train ing on the use of the T21 de vel op ment
model; and 

— Nu clear Tech nol o gies: Sci en tific Visit.

An nual Re port, 2008 21



COR PO RATE AF FAIRS,
MAR KET ING AND
COM MU NI CA TION 

T
he Cor po rate Af fairs, Mar ket ing and Com mu ni ca tion
(CAMC) Di vi sion has pri mary re spon si bil ity for the
pro duc tion of the or ga ni za tion’s pub li ca tions; the co or -

di na tion of ex ter nal and in ter nal com mu ni ca tion; stra te gic
plan ning; and the pro vi sion of ad min is tra tive ser vices to the
Board of Di rec tors. The Di vi sion is com prised of two
Units—Pub li ca tions, and Mar ket ing and Com mu ni ca tion.

The Di vi sion con tin ued to co or di nate the dis sem i na tion of 
timely and ac cu rate data through the In sti tute’s pub li ca tions,
which in clude: the Eco nomic and So cial Sur vey Ja maica
(ESSJ); the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di tions (JSLC);
the quar terly Eco nomic Up date & Out look (EU&O); the bi -
an nual La bour Mar ket In for ma tion News let ter (LMIN) and  
JA PEO PLE mag a zine. Quar terly Press Brief ings, com ple -
mented by the EU&O, share the mac ro eco nomic per for -
mance of the econ omy with the Ja mai can pub lic. 

The year was a sig nif i cant one for the PIOJ and the Di vi -

sion, as the In sti tute’s pre mier pub li ca tion, Eco nomic and So -
cial  Sur vey Ja maica  (ESSJ)  cel  e  brated i ts  50th
an ni ver sary—a land mark achieve ment. For 50 years, the
ESSJ has been pro vid ing in valu able in for ma tion on the coun -
try’s eco nomic and so cial de vel op ment. Co in cid ing with the
50th An ni ver sary Com mem o ra tion was the of fi cial open ing
of the PIOJ’s new of fice on Ox ford Road. An other mile stone
achieved was the Di vi sion’s col lab o ra tion with the So cial
Pol icy, Plan ning & Re search Di vi sion in the suc cess ful stag -
ing of the Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di tions 20th An ni -
ver sary Con fer ence. 

Part ner ing with other Di vi sions, CAMC con tin ues to as -
sist in the co or di na tion of sev eral events in clud ing the launch
in July of the JamStats website, EduStats and the 2008
JamStats da ta base; the launch of the Na tional Pov erty Maps
and the re search pub li ca tion, Is sues of Crit i cal So cial Con -
cern: Some In ves ti ga tions, un der the Pov erty Mon i tor ing
and So cial Pol icy Anal y sis (PMSPA). These ac tiv i ties con -
tinue to raise vis i bil ity and pro vide in for ma tion about the
work of the In sti tute and its prod ucts. 

EX TER NAL COM MU NI CA TION

Eco nomic and So cial Sur vey Ja maica, 
50th An ni ver sary 

In June 2008, the Di vi sion or ga nized and suc cess fully ex -
e cuted the com mem o ra tion of the 50th An ni ver sary of the
ESSJ. The event also marked the PIOJ’s move to its new
home at 16 Ox ford Road. Prime Min is ter, the Hon our able
Bruce Golding of fi cially opened the new of fices and
brought re marks, as well as the Most Hon our able Ed -
ward Seaga, ON, PC, Dis tin guished Fel low, Uni ver sity
of the West In dies; Op po si tion Spokes man on Fi nance
and for mer Di rec tor Gen eral of the PIOJ, Dr Omar Davies; 
and Di rec tor Gen eral, Dr Wes ley Hughes. A book let, ESSJ
At 50: Two Re views, co-authored by Pro fes sor Edwin Jones
and Evadne McLean, out lin ing the his tory of the ESSJ was
pre pared by the CAMC and dis trib uted at the event.

A high light of the event was the pre sen ta tion of spe cial
awards to for mer em ploy ees who con trib uted to  the pub li ca -
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tion—Mr Lin coln McIntosh, OD; Mrs Delores Nel son and
Ms Ger trude Burke, OD. Cur rent ed i tor, Ms Carole James
was also re cog nised, along with the Sta tis ti cal In sti tute of Ja -
maica (STATIN), the Bank of Ja maica (BOJ), the Min is try of
Fi nance and the Pub lic Ser vice, and the Ja maica Print ing Ser -
vices in rec og ni tion of their con tri bu tion to the  pub li ca tion .

Di a logue For De vel op ment Se ries

In 2001, the PIOJ launched a se ries of dis tin guished
lec tures—the Di a logue for De vel op ment Lec ture—to
in crease its in ter face with the pub lic on de vel op ment is sues.
The Di a logue in 2007, took the form of pub lic con sul ta tions
on the Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan.
This year, the Di a logue for De vel op ment Lec ture held in No -
vem ber high lighted as one of its key is sues, the em pha sis on
ev i dence-based pol icy, ar tic u lated by the need to strengthen
the data–pol icy ex change. Pro fes sor Pa tri cia An der son, Pro -
fes sor, Ap plied So ci ol ogy, Uni ver sity of the West In dies
(UWI), was guest speaker and her pre sen ta tion, The Con ver -
sa tion Be tween Sta tis tics and So cial Pol icy: When We Lis ten,
When We Don’t, co-authored with Mr Colin Wil liams, lec -
turer, Sta tis tics and Re search Meth ods, UWI, was pub lished
and dis trib uted at the lec ture. The lec ture was a pre lude to the
Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di tions 20th An ni ver sary Con -
fer ence which had some 250 per sons in at ten dance.

A me dia cam paign geared to wards pro mot ing the event
also served to cre ate aware ness and in crease the vis i bil ity of
the In sti tute. As part of the pro cess, CAMC de vel oped print
and ra dio ad ver tise ments, set up in ter views and or ga nized an
out side broad cast. 

Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di tions 
20th An ni ver sary Con fer ence 

The Ja maica Sur vey of Liv ing Con di tions (JSLC)—the 
PIOJ’s joint pub li ca tion with the Sta tis ti cal In sti tute of
Ja maica (STATIN)—cel e brated its 20th an ni ver sary in
No vem ber with a research con fer ence un der the theme,
‘Fram ing So cial De vel op ment Pol icy through Re search’.
JSLC 2007 was launched by Sen a tor the Hon Dwight Nel son, 
Min is ter with out Port fo lio, Min is try of Fi nance and the Pub -
lic Ser vice. Dr Sudhanshu Handa, As so ci ate Pro fes sor, De -
part ment of Pub lic Pol icy, Uni ver sity of North Carolina was
the key note speaker. Us ing JSLC data, pa pers were pre sented
on a num ber of so cial de vel op ment im per a tives in clud ing ed -
u ca tion du ra tion; ab sen tee ism; the im pact of the Programme
of Ad vance ment Through Health and Ed u ca tion (PATH) on
im prov ing stu dent out comes; healthy age ing and youth em -

pow er ment.   

Con tin ued Col lab o ra tion

CAMC con tin ued its col lab o ra tion with other Di vi sions in 
stag ing a num ber of ex ter nal ac tiv i ties in clud ing par tic i pat -
ing in the or ga ni za tion and co or di na tion of a panel dis cus sion
com mem o rat ing World Pop u la tion Day, July 11 2008. In
April, the Di vi sion as sisted UNICEF in or ga niz ing the launch 
of the UNICEF/PIOJ Work ing Group of the So cial In vest -
ment for Chil dren Ini tia tive (SICI) pub li ca tion at the
Bustamante Hos pi tal for Chil dren, and in Oc to ber, the Ca rib -
bean Child Re search Con fer ence. In col lab o ra tion with the
UNDP, the In ter na tional Day for the Erad i ca tion of Pov erty
was ob served with a Pov erty Erad i ca tion Rally in Eman ci pa -
tion Park; and in No vem ber, along with UNFPA, the launch
of State of World Pop u la tion Re port 2008 was held. In ad di -
tion, CAMC con tin ued to pro vide sup port to the Plan De vel -
op ment Unit through me dia pro mo tion of Vi sion 2030
Jamaica-National Development Plan’s public consultations. 

Press Brief ing

Press brief ings con tin ued to be held ev ery quar ter fol -
lowed by the pro duc tion of the Eco nomic Up date & Out look
(EU&O). The brief ings up date the me dia and gen eral pub lic
on the sta tus of the coun try’s macro econ omy and real sec tors. 
Press re leases con tin ued to be dis sem i nated and up loaded to
the website.  

Website

The In sti tute’s user-friendly website con tin ues to be a cen -
tral tool in the dis sem i na tion of socio-eco nomic data.
Through its e-com merce ca pa bil i ties, pub li ca tions are made
avail able for sale. In ad di tion, press re leases, job va can cies,
ten der doc u ments and con sul ta tion ven ues can be ac cessed
by the pub lic. 
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Pro mo tional Ac tiv i ties

Geared to wards im prov ing the vis i bil ity and aware ness of
PIOJ pub li ca tions, the In sti tute’s prod ucts and ser vices are
pro moted and mar keted islandwide at ex hi bi tions and
through islandwide pub li ca tion pro mo tions in schools. The
aim is to pro vide in for ma tion on as pects of the role, work and
func tions of the PIOJ; to in tro duce stu dents and teach ers to
the In sti tute’s var i ous socio-eco nomic pub li ca tions by ex po -
sure to the In sti tute’s pub li ca tions and ser vices; and to as sist

stu dents  in mak ing in formed ca reer choices based on the cur -
rent trends in the job mar ket. Four par ishes have been tar -
geted to date—St. Catherine, St. Ann, Trelawny and St.
James—and over 1 000 stu dents have par tic i pated.  The pro -
mo tions are done in col lab o ra tion with the Cor po rate Ser -
vices; So cial Pol icy, Plan ning & Re search; and Sus tain able
Development & Regional Planning Di vi sions. 

A num ber of dis plays were mounted through out the
year—the two-day SALISES 9th An nual Con fer ence in
March, ‘Re in vent ing the Po lit i cal Econ omy Tra di tion of the
Ca rib bean’, held at the Mona Vis i tors’ Lodge and Con fer -
ence Cen tre; and in No vem ber the Na tional En vi ron ment and
Plan ning Agency (NEPA) World Town Plan ning Day, Devon
House; and the Sci en tific Re search Coun cil’s (SRC) Open
Day,  were held, among oth ers.     

Pub li ca tions are avail able from our Book shop, lo cated at
the PIOJ’s Of fices and from Sangsters Book Store, in ad di -

tion to the Sir Ar thur Lewis In sti tute of So cial and Eco nomic
Stud ies (SALISES) Book Shop, Uni ver sity of the West In -
dies, Mona cam pus; face-to-face at book launches; busi ness
sem i nars; con fer ences and other pub lic fora.  

IN TER NAL COM MU NI CA TION

PIOJ High lights and Intranet

CAMC main tains in ter nal com mu ni ca tion with staff
through the Intranet and the PIOJ High lights, an in ter nal
news let ter, which is pub lished bi an nu ally Jan u ary–June and
Oc to ber–December. 

Com mu ni ca tions Com mit tee

In 2003, the Com mu ni ca tions Com mit tee was formed to
ad dress com mu ni ca tion prob lems at the PIOJ and to re view
the Cit i zen’s Char ter. Re com menc ing in Sep tem ber, the
Com mit tee met twice for the year to dis cuss is sues re lat ing to, 
inter alia, the re cep tion area; floor di rec tory; the sug ges tion
box; security and parking.  

Ad di tion ally, the Com mit tee pro vided sup port to the
Learn ing Hour—for merly the Lunch Hour Fo rum—an ini tia -
tive geared to wards pro vid ing staff in ter ac tion on var i ous
top i cal issues.     
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Cit i zen’s Char ter

Cus tomer sat is fac tion is a crit i cal tenet of the PIOJ’s
Cit i zen’s Char ter. To this end, cus tomer ser vice re ports are
sub mit ted each quar ter to the Of fice of the Prime Min is ter’s
Stan dards & Mon i tor ing Unit. The Di vi sion reg u larly taps
into the needs and con cerns of cus tom ers through the use of
its cus tomer com ment cards as part of the In sti tute’s goal to
main tain high cus tomer ser vice stan dards and cor rec tive ac -
tions are taken where pos si ble. 

MAN AGE MENT RE TREAT

A Man age ment Re treat was held on No vem ber 14, 2008.
Some of the out comes from this ses sion were:

— in te gra tion of the Na tional De vel op ment Plan into the 
In sti tute’s An nual Cor po rate and Op er a tional Plans
and align ment of the work of the Di vi sions with the
Plan; 

— trans la tion of the Me dium Term Frame work into pro -
jects and programmes;

— greater col lab o ra tion and in te gra tion among Di vi -
sions;

— better man age ment of data;

— cross-func tional train ing;

— re struc tur ing the PIOJ to en sure ef fec tive de ploy ment 
of hu man re sources;

— ef fec tive in ter nal and ex ter nal com mu ni ca tion; and 

— build ing of ca pac ity for mon i tor ing and eval u a tion.

SUP PORT SER VICES

CAMC pro vides ad min is tra tive sup port to the Board of
Di rec tors. The pro duc tion of com pli men tary slips, busi ness
cards, cover de signs for var i ous doc u ments, the pro duc tion of 
ad ver tise ments and programmes, and pub li ca tions for other
Divisions continued. 



COR PO RATE SER VICES 

T
he Cor po rate Ser vices Di vi s ion through i ts
units—Ac counting, Of fice Man age ment, In for ma -
tion Sys tems, Facilities Man age ment, Doc u men ta tion

Cen tre and Hu man Re source—pro vides the fi nan cial, phys i -
cal, tech no log i cal and hu man cap i tal re quire ments of the In -
sti tute. Piv otal to its man date is the in for ma tive role played by 
the Doc u men ta tion Cen tre which pro vides rel e vant so cial
and eco nomic in for ma tion to the In sti tute’s stake holders,
while the In for ma tion Sys tems Unit con trib uted to in for ma -
tion tech nol ogy (IT) de vel op ment ac tiv i ties in the in for ma -
tics sec tor.

The year 2008 de manded more strin gent man age ment
prac tices to en sure the timely de liv ery of ser vices to pro mote
sustainability of the re sources of the or ga ni za tion. Among the 
pri or ity ar eas was the con tin u ous up grad ing of pro cesses and
sys tems to en able a cut ting edge en vi ron ment for op ti mal ef -
fi ciency. Vi sion 2030 Ja maica-Na tional De vel op ment Plan
was one area that re quired the pro vi sion of re sources for the
nu mer ous con sul ta tions held islandwide.

One of the many chal lenges faced was re lated to the com -
ple tion of the PIOJ Build ing at 16 Ox ford Road and the re lo -
ca tion of staff. The PIOJ Build ing was of fi cially opened
by the Hon our able Bruce Orette Golding, Prime Min is -
ter of Jamaica and bless ings were pro nounced by The Ro -
man Cath o lic Vicar Gen eral of the Arch di o cese of Kingston,

Very Rev. Fa ther Ken neth Rich ards.  Among the spe cial
guests were Min is ters of Par lia ment and a rep re sen ta tion
from the In ter na tional Do nor Com mu nity. 

MAIN OB JEC TIVES

The main ob jec tives of the Di vi sion were to:

— im ple ment mod ern net work in fra struc ture and com -
mu ni ca tion sys tems;

— out fit the PIOJ build ing with ad e quate power sup ply
and elec tronic se cu rity sys tems; 

— ob serve oc cu pa tional health and safety stan dards; 

— re duce en ergy costs; 

— in crease fo cus on staff wel fare programmes;

— stream line the man age ment of the In sti tute’s as sets
and fi nan cial re sources; and

— im prove the qual ity of read ers’ ad vi sory ser vices to
in ter nal and ex ter nal cli ents.

HU MAN RE SOURCE UNIT

The Hu man Re source Unit was charged to con tinue de vel -
op ing the In sti tute’s com pet i tive ad van tage through ef fec tive
man age ment of both the in ter nal and ex ter nal environments.

MA JOR ACHIEVE MENTS:

The year saw an in creased em pha sis on staff wel fare and
de vel op ment re sult ing from re lo ca tion ac tiv i ties which cre -
ated vary ing lev els of adapt abil ity and the need for im proved
cor po rate social networks.

Tal ent Man age ment

An in-depth re view of the tal ent man age ment pro cesses
across Di vi sions in formed the Suc ces sion Plan ning model
that was fur ther de vel oped. The model pro vided a di ag nos tic
as sess ment of the pro duc tive ca pa bil i ties of in di vid u als (that
is, knowl edge, skills and ex pe ri ence) which was pre sented to
the Di vi sional Di rec tors. Job eval u a tion ex er cises were con -
ducted re sult ing in an up grad ing of five jobs in the tech ni cal
ar eas. These eval u a tions were based on the com par a tive
worth of jobs per form ing similar functions in the wider
public service.

Train ing and De vel op ment

With a more ma ture Per for mance Based Man age ment
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Sys tem (PBMS) learn ing needs were iden ti fied and em ploy -
ees bene fited from study tours in ar eas of re search, eco nomic
model de vel op ment, pro ject man age ment, cor po rate gov er -
nance, eco nomic and so cial pol icy con sult ing, and data man -
age ment anal y sis. The Unit, with the as sis tance of a Sum mer
In tern, con ducted a fea si bil ity study and de signed pro vi -
sional im ple men ta tion Plan for e-Learning within the PIOJ.

Cor po rate Wellness Programme

The In sti tute’s Cor po rate Wellness programme con tin ued
to im pact pos i tively on pre mium rates for health in sur ance. In 
com par i son with pre vi ous years, the over all claim uti li za tion
re mained within the in dus try stan dard. April to De cem ber
2008 saw a 77.0 per cent con tain ment in in curred claims by
service rate. 

The start-up of can teen ser vices formed part of the cor po -
rate wellness drive to en sure healthy nu tri tional prac tices for
mem bers of staff.  In keep ing with Min is try of Health reg u la -
tions in fra struc ture was put in place for the pro vi sion of ser -
vices.  A can teen con ces sion aire was se lected with the
as sis tance of the Can teen/Stan dards Com mit tee. 

Com mu nity Out reach

As part of  the Unit’s  com mu ni ty out reach,  a
Back-to-School as sis tance programme for the Ja maica Chris -
tian Boys' Home was ini ti ated with the help of the PIOJ’S
Staff As so ci a tion.  Mem bers of staff do nated pre-owned text -
books and ar ti cles of cloth ing to the Ja maica Chris tian Boys’
Home.  On oc ca sion staff pro vided meals for the Home’s 30
res i dents.   

The In sti tute up graded its com mu ni ca tion sys tem and ac -
quired new tele phones.  The Cor po rate Ser vices Di vi sion do -
nated ap prox i mately 100 tele phones from the pre vi ous used
sys tem to the Ja maica Con stab u lary Force.

As a re sult of the re fur bish ing pro ject in 2008, the In sti tute 
re placed many of its of fice fur ni ture.  The fur ni ture that was
no lon ger in use was do nated to se lected ba sic and sec ond ary
schools in the Cor po rate area as well as the Ja maica Con stab -
u lary Force.

AC COUNT ING UNIT

The Ac count ing Unit pro vided fi nan cial in for ma tion re -
quired by in ter nal and ex ter nal us ers and pre pared and al lo -
cated the an nual re cur rent bud get among the Di vi sions within 
the PIOJ. The Unit also pre pared and sub mit ted Cap i tal bud -
gets and pro vided re ceipts and ex pen di ture in for ma tion for
Cap i tals A and B pro jects. Fi nan cial in for ma tion was pro -
vided in ter nally to the Board of Di rec tors, the Di rec tor Gen -
eral and the Com mit tee of Man age ment and ex ter nally to the
Of fice of the Prime Min is ter and In ter na tional Or ga ni za tions. 
In ad di tion, pay roll is pre pared and dis bursed monthly and
cheques are pre pared and disbursed to suppliers and vendors
within specified timelines. 

Ma jor Achieve ments

The al lo ca tion of PIOJ’s ap proved bud get for 2008/2009
was pro por tion ately as signed to the Di vi sions. Ac tual ex pen -
di ture was al lo cated to the Di vi sions and monthly fi nan cial
state ments pre pared and distributed. 

A sup ple men tary bud get was req ui si tioned de spite pru -
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PIOJ’s team smile for the cam era at the Sigma Cor po rate Run 2008; as part of its Cor po rate Wellness Programme, Eman ci pa tion Park, March 9, 2008.
Stand ing (l–r) are: Mrs San dra Ward, Man ager, Hu man Re source Unit; Mr Rich ard Kelly, Sci ence and Tech nol ogy Plan ner, Sus tain able De vel op ment
& Re gional Plan ning; Miss Steph a nie Wat son, Sec re tary, Ex ter nal Co op er a tion Man age ment; and Miss Karlene Mitch ell, Econ o mist, Eco nomic
Plan ning & Re search. 



dent fi nan cial dis ci pline due to new rates for sal a ries and
travel al low ances that were put in ef fect dur ing the bud get
year.  These costs were not iden ti fied at the time of sub mis -
sion. A Sup ple men tary Bud get was ap proved for $25.363
mil lion.

Dur ing the year, a new en tity (PIOJ Build ing Main te -
nance) was set up as a sep a rate ac count ing sys tem to re cord
the main te nance costs shared by the In sti tute and its ten ant.

 OTHER ACHIEVE MENTS:

  Other Achieve ments of the Unit were:

— fi nan cial state ments pro duced and sub mit ted to the
Board of Di rec tors;

— bank ac counts rec on ciled on a monthly ba sis;

— monthly fi nan cial state ments gen er ated to en sure cur -
rency of ac count ing re cords;

— prep a ra tion of the 2009/2010 bud get com menced in
De cem ber 2008 for sub mis sion to the Of fice of the
Prime Min is ter in Jan u ary 2009; and

— prep a ra tion of the au dited fi nan cial state ments for
2007 based on the new In ter na tional Fi nan cial Re -
port ing Stan dards (IFRS) and com pleted to meet the
March 31 dead line.       

IN FOR MA TION SYS TEMS UNIT

The In for ma tion Sys tems Unit man aged the in for ma tion
and com mu ni ca tions tech nol ogy in fra struc ture while en sur -

ing the align ment of in for ma tion tech nol ogy and the or ga ni -
za tion’s strat e gies.  The Unit pro moted the tech no log i cal
ma tu rity of the or ga ni za tion through the im ple men ta tion of
ef fec tive in for ma tion tech nol ogy so lu tions. Pol icy ad vice
and tech ni cal as sis tance was pro vided to pub lic sec tor In for -
ma tion Com mu ni ca tions Tech nol ogy (ICT) pro jects, such as
the Cit i zens’ Security and Justice Programme in the Ministry
of National Security. 

Ma jor Achieve ments

The key IT so lu tions were  the im ple men ta tion of the net -
work in fra struc ture and com mu ni ca tion sys tems, power sup -
ply, ac cess con trol and sur veil lance sys tems for the PIOJ’s
new of fices. Other so lu tions in cluded the up grad ing of the IT
in fra struc ture for in creased pro duc tiv ity ex tend ing to con tin -
ued sup port to pub lic sec tor ICT im ple men ta tion and co or di -
na tion. Listed for em pha sis are other IT platforms completed
during the year:

— Im ple men ta tion of Net work in fra struc ture (net work
back bone, struc tured ca bling and new switches) was
com pleted;

— VOIP Pri vate Branch Ex change and IP com mu ni ca -
tion sys tem im ple mented;

— Ac cess Con trol and badge Pro duc tion Sys tem im ple -
mented;

— Sur veil lance Sys tem im ple mented;

— Uninterruptible Power Sup ply (UPS) units in stalled
for two floors;

— De vel op ment and im ple men ta tion of Lunch Or der
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Cor po rate Ser vices Di rec tor, PIOJ, Mr Kirk Philips (left) and Mrs San dra Ward (third left), Man ager, Hu man Re source Unit, PIOJ, hand over PBX
tele phones to In spec tor Le o nardo Brown, Tele com mu ni ca tions Di vi sion, Ja maica Con stab u lary Force (JCF) as part of the PIOJ’s com mu nity out reach
programme. Shar ing in the mo ment are In spec tor Glenford Miller (right), Con stant Spring Po lice Sta tion; Mrs Jan elle Cox (second right), Man ager,
In for ma tion Sys tems Unit, PIOJ; and Ser geant Glasford Beckford (third right), Tele com mu ni ca tions Di vi sion, JCF. The event took place at the PIOJ
of fices, May 2008. The PIOJ do nated ap prox i mately 100 tele phones to the Ja maica Con stab u lary Force. 



sys tem;

— JAMSTATS web site re quire ments spec i fi ca tions
com pleted;

— Main tained Intranet, Fi nan cial Man age ment In for -
ma tion Sys tem, Pay roll Sys tem and other cor po rate
sys tems;

— Main tained in for ma tion tech nol ogy in fra struc ture in -
clud ing re place ment of ob so lete equip ment and up -
graded soft ware thereby en abling op ti mum
per for mance; and

— Pro vided tech ni cal ad vice to IDB funded pro jects –
Cit i zens’ Se cu rity and Jus tice Programme and T21-
Ja maica Model.

DOC U MEN TA TION CEN TRE AND 
REG IS TRY

The Doc u men ta tion Cen tre con tin ued to be the World
Bank De pos i tory Li brary Programme and a de pend able
source of new in for ma tion re sources. Other do nors in cluded
the Houses of Par lia ment, the Inter-Amer i can De vel op ment
Bank, Min is try of Fi nance and the Pub lic Ser vice, Bank of Ja -
maica and STATIN. A to tal of 2 356 items were ac quired dur -
ing the year.  Some 1 115 re cords were added to the
bib lio graphic da ta base in creas ing the to tal from 13 221 in
De cem ber 2007 to 14 336 records by December 2008. 

Ma jor Achievements 

As of Sep tem ber 2008, em ploy ees were able to ac cess the
Li brary’s bib lio graphic da ta base as the SECIN da ta base,
which con tains most of the Cen tre’s re cords has been posted
on the In sti tute’s intranet.

The thrust, which started in 2007 to fa cil i tate eas ier ac cess
to more on line in for ma tion re sources con tin ued. Our re quest
to EBSCO Pub lish ing for a trial run of rel e vant da ta bases was 
granted and in Sep tem ber, the Doc u men ta tion Cen tre got a
six-month trial run of two of their da ta bases: SocIndex with
Full Text and En vi ron men tal Com plete.  The trial run ends
March 31. The World Bank e-li brary con tin ued to pro vide
quick and re li able ac cess to socio-eco nomic in for ma tion. 

There were 377 ref er ence que ries com pared with 708 for
the pre vi ous year. The de crease could be at trib uted to the re -
lo ca tion. There was also a de crease in the num ber of loans as
3 051 were re corded for 2008 rel a tive to 3 631 for the pre vi -
ous year. Ac cess to In for ma tion que ries de creased to 19 from
26 in 2007.

Socio-Eco nomic In for ma tion Net work

Two more li brar ies sub mit ted da ta bases for in clu sion in
the SECIN da ta base: the Bu reau of Womens’ Af fairs and the

Coun cil of Vol un tary So cial Ser vices. SECIN units are par -
tic i pat ing in the Na tional Un ion Cat a logue pro ject be ing
spear headed by the Na tional Li brary of Ja maica. This is an
ini tia tive to en cour age li brar ies in the Na tional In for ma tion
Sys tem, of which the SECIN net work is a part, to con trib ute
to a na tional bib lio graphic da ta base. Four is sues of SECIN
news were pub lished and two is sues re flected the new fea -
ture: profiles of librarians who serve in SECIN libraries.

OF FICE SER VICES UNIT

The Unit con tin ued to play a piv otal role in the pro vi sion
of suit able ac com mo da tion for In ter na tional con sul tants.  It
pro vides fleet and as set man age ment and is the cen tral pro -
cure ment unit of the In sti tute.  Of fice Ser vices pro vides the
nec es sary tools and sup plies for the daily op er a tion of all the
In sti tute’s Di vi sions.  It gives lo gis ti cal sup port for all of the
PIOJ’s func tions and for PIOJ’s staff mem bers as needed. 
The Unit en sures that proper in sur ance cov er age is in place
for the In sti tute’s as sets in clud ing the PIOJ Build ing.  This
Unit ob serves er go nomic needs for proper oc cu pa tional,
health and safety prac tices in keeping with the various Acts
and government policies.

Ma jor Achieve ments

The team spear headed lo gis ti cal ar range ments for fa cil i -
tat ing the re lo ca tion of the PIOJ of fices in April 2008. In
com pli ance with gov ern ment reg u la tions, the Unit also co or -
di nated and man aged the pro cure ment pro cess, which was
crit i cal, due to in creased con trac tual ne go ti a tions as so ci ated
with the re lo ca tion ex er cise. Other areas of coverage
included:

— As set Man age ment Reg is ter main tained in keep ing
with au dit re quire ments

— Fleet Man age ment data base up graded and main -
tained

— Di sas ter Pre pared ness prac tices com mu ni cated and
put in op er a tions 

— In sur ance cov er age ne go ti ated and re newed for all
as sets

— Ob so lete and non-func tional equip ment and mo tor
ve hi cles dis posed of in keep ing with re quired stan -
dards

FA CIL I TIES MAN AGE MENT UNIT (FMU)

This Unit was es tab lished fol low ing mar ket re search on
the costs of com mer cial prop erty man age ment ser vices. The
pur pose of the Unit is to man age the prop erty within the con -
fines of an es tab lished main te nance bud get. The Unit main -
tained the pre mises with a view to in creas ing PIOJ Build ing’s 
mar ket value.  It han dled space plan ning and of fice lay out
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pro jects through out the year. The FMU spear headed ne go ti a -
tions with ten ants and ad ja cent prop erty own ers and li aised
with le gal con sul tants and build ing professionals regarding
property matters. 

Ma jor Achieve ments

In an ef fort to con tain costs, the PIOJ en gaged the ser vices
of an in-house Fa cil i ties Man ager. Dur ing 2008, some of the
ini tia tives were spe cif i cally geared to wards re duc ing en ergy
costs.  For ex am ple, the shift in the Jan i to rial hours from
5:00pm–9:00pm to 3:30pm–6:30pm to better uti lize the
PIOJ’s work ing hours when the lights through out the build -
ing are nor mally in use.   There was also the im ple men ta tion
of a pol icy to turn off the el e va tor af ter work ing hours and on
week ends.  The PIOJ com mis sioned an En ergy Au dit to as -
sess the en ergy us age and to rec om mend meth ods to fur ther
im prove en ergy ef fi ciency. In the area of sustainability, the
In sti tute through the Fa cil i ties Man age ment Unit or ga nized
with the Pro tect the En vi ron ment Trust (PET) to es tab lish a
plas tic re cy cling programme. Steps were also taken to ex pand 
the re cy cling programme to in clude pa per re cy cling.  These
re cy cling pro jects were im ple mented at no cost to the In sti -
tute and were de signed to re duce the main te nance cost for
waste ma te rial at the PIOJ Build ing.  

New se cu rity pro ce dures were im ple mented to pro tect the
In sti tute’s staff and prop erty. The lo gis tics of con tracted se -
cu rity per son nel and the es tab lish ment of spec i fied hours of
duty at stra te gic posts helped to re duce se cu rity risks at the lo -
ca tion. 

The Plan ning In sti tute of Ja maica en tered into ser vice
con tracts for all its cap i tal equip ment in or der to max i mize the 
life cy cle of its equip ment.  Other ser vice con tracts were also
es tab lished for Jan i to rial, Se cu rity, Pest con trol and oth ers
that are nec es sary for proper build ing man age ment.

The in tro duc tion of the Unit ex panded the In sti tute’s
knowl edge base to in clude con struc tion, real es tate and build -
ing man age ment.  The Unit was re spon si ble for the man age -
ment of one-off pro jects and some that in volved el e ments of
change such as elec tri cal up grades and fur ni ture up grade. 
The FMU pro vided con sul ta tion to a gov ern ment agency, the
Na tional Cen tre for Youth De vel op ment (NCYD) in the Min -
is try of In for ma tion, Cul ture, Youth and Sports. 

The FMU car ried out ten ders for var i ous build ing ser -
vices.  It co or di nated and pre pared ten der re ports for sub mis -
sion to Sec tor Com mit tees and for the Na tional Con tracts
Com mit tee’s (NCC) con sid er ation.  The Unit rep re sented the
In sti tute at those Sec tor Com mit tee meet ings.

This Unit achieved the aes thet ics and am bi ence within and 
sur round ing the build ing that re flected the de sired im pres -
sion on stake holders and was con du cive to pro duc tiv ity.

Pen sion Fund

In keep ing with new Pen sion reg u la tions as es tab lished by 
the Fi nan cial Ser vices Com mis sion (FSC), con tri bu -
tions to the fund were kept within the seven-day dead -
line. As at December 2008, the fund stood at $412 214
037.00.



An nual Re port, 2008 31

Com pen sa tion of Se nior Man age ment, Jan u ary – De cem ber 2008

         $        $ 
  Minimum    Maximum 

Salary Range of Senior Management  
 

January – March   2 478 023  4 753 107  
 April – December   2 601 931  4 990 773 
 
Notes 

i) Senior Management includes the Director General and seven Directors 
ii) The Director General is provided with a fully maintained motor vehicle.  
iii) The Director General and two Directors are eligible for gratuity  
iv) Six Directors contribute to the Pension Plan  
v) Each member of Senior Management is eligible for health insurance and life 

insurance.  
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Members of the joint PIOJ/STATIN Ensemble perform
at the Jamaica Survey of Living Conditions 20th
Anniversary Conference, Knutsford Court Hotel,
November 26, 2008.

2008 Year in Re view

Examining a copy of the Jamaica Survey of Living
Conditions 2007 are (l–r) Senator, the Hon Dwight Nelson,
Minister without Portfolio, Ministry of Finance and the
Public Service; Dr Wesley Hughes, Director General, PIOJ;
Dr Sudhanshu Handa, Associate Professor, Department of
Public Policy, University of North Carolina; and Ms Sonia
Jackson, Director General, STATIN.

Dr Pauline Knight (left), Director, Social Policy,
Planning & Research, PIOJ, presents a copy of her
book Inequality and Stratification in Jamaica
during Economic Adjustment, 1991–2000 to Mrs
Arlene Ononaiwu (right), Manager, Technical
Information, PIOJ, at its launch during the
Jamaica Survey of Living Conditions 20th
Anniversary Conference, Knutsford Court Hotel,
November 26, 2008.
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2008 Year in Re view

The Most Hon Edward Seaga, ON, PC (left), Distinguished
Fellow, University of the West Indies cuts the ceremonial ribbon to
officially open the PIOJ’s offices during the commemoration of the 
50th Anniversary of the ESSJ. Sharing in the moment are Prime
Minister, the Hon Bruce Golding, MP (right) and Dr Wesley
Hughes (centre), Director General, PIOJ. 

A cross section of the audience appears to be quite
engaged during the commemoration of the 50th
Anniversary of the ESSJ. Seated (front row) are Mr
Lincoln McIntosh, OD, former Director, Research &
Social Planning Division, PIOJ; Miss Gertrude Burke,
OD, former Head, Publications Unit, PIOJ; (second
row, r–l) Miss Carole James, Manager, National
Planning Council Secretariat, Economic Planning &
Research Division, PIOJ; and Mrs Delores Nelson,
former Director, Research, Documentation &
Publication Division; (third row) Very Rev Father
Kenneth Richards, Roman Catholic Vicar General,
Archdiocese of Kingston; and members of the
diplomatic corps.

Standing reverently during the benediction at the
commemoration of the 50th Anniversary of the ESSJ
are: (l–r) Justice Hugh Small, former Minister,
Ministry of Finance & Planning; Mrs Marjorie
Henriques (partially hidden), former Director
General, PIOJ; Dr the Hon Omar Davies, Opposition
Spokesman, Ministry of Finance & the Public
Service; the Most Hon Glynne Manley; Ambassador
Don Mills, former Director General, PIOJ; Dr Wesley 
Hughes, Director General, PIOJ; Prime Minister, the
Hon Bruce Golding, MP; and the Most Hon Edward
Seaga, ON, PC, Distinguished Fellow, University of
the West Indies. 
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THE PLANNING INSTITUTE OF JAMAICA 
 
INCOME STATEMENT 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008  
 
 
 
 
 2008 
 

2007 
Notes

 
 $’000 $’000 

INCOME     
Government grants 16 401,749 318,399 
Other income 17     6,969 
 

    4,563 
   

  408,718 
 

322,962 
   

EXPENSES    
Staff costs 18 252,528 251,042 
Property expenses  48,424 56,571 * 
Consultancy and professional fees  3,672 2,499 
Depreciation   23,081 11,780 
Other operating expenses    26,711   18,020
 

 * 
   

  354,416 
 

339,912 
   

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS  54,302 (  16,950) 
    
Interest Income      3,395 
 

    2,646 
   

NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT)     57,697 (  14,304) 
    
 
 
*  Restated to conform with current year classifications. 
 
The Notes on Pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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THE PLANNING INSTITUTE OF JAMAICA 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 
  
 Government   
 Contributions Capital      Accumulated 
      to Equity    Grants       Surplus     
 

Total 
Note

 
 $’000    $’000   $’000   $’000 

Balance at January 1, 2007     353 253,027   44,473 
 

297,853 
     

Project grants received for capital       
  expenditure       -       109,427       -        
 

109,427 
     

Net income recognised directly in equity 13 -      109,427 -       109,427 
      
Deficit for the year       -             -      (    14,304 ()   14,304
 

) 
     

Total recognised income for the year  -      109,427 (  14,304)   95,123 
      
Transfer to accumulated surplus,       
 amount equivalent to depreciation      
 charges for the year on assets acquired       
 using project grants 13      -    (      8,406)      8,406       -      
 

  
     

Balance at January 1, 2008     353 354,048   38,575 
 

392,976 
     

Project grants received for capital       
  expenditure       -         61,505       -        
 

  61,505 
     

Net income recognised directly in equity 13 -      61,505 -       61,505 
      
Surplus for the year       -             -          57,697 
 

  57,697 
     

Total recognised income for the year  -      61,505 57,697 119,202 
      
Transfer to accumulated surplus,       
 amount equivalent to depreciation      
 charges for the year on assets acquired       
 using project grants 13      -    (    14,306)    14,306       -      
 

  
     

Balance at December 31, 2008     353 401,247 110,578 512,178 
 
 
The Notes on Pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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THE PLANNING INSTITUTE OF JAMAICA 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 
 
 
 2008   
   $’000  $’000 

2007 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Net surplus (loss)  57,697 (  14,304) 
   
Adjustments for:   
Depreciation of property and equipment 23,081 11,780 
Interest income  (    3,395) (    2,646) 
Retirement benefit plan (credit) charge   (  23,154) 
 

  25,398 
  

Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 54,229 20,228 
   
Decrease (increase) in inventories 1,871 (       367) 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable  1,232 (  11,367) 
Increase in owed to projects     2,211 12,589 
Increase in accounts payable    12,291 
 

   19,757 
  

Cash provided by operating activities   71,834    40,840 
Contributions to retirement benefit plan (  12,479 ()   11,129
 

) 
  

Net cash provided by operating activities   59,355 
 

  29,711 
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Interest received  2,837 2,803 
Acquisition of property and equipment (120,623) (126,089) 
Long-term receivables (net) (    1,088 ()     2,951
 

) 
  

Cash used in investing activities (118,874 () 126,237
 

) 
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

Project grant received   61,505 
 

109,427 
  

Cash provided by investing activities   61,505 
 

109,427 
  

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,986 12,901 
   
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   42,441 
 

  29,540 
  

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   44,427   42,441 
     
 
 
The Notes on Pages 6 to 28 form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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1 IDENTIFICATION 
 

1.1 General information 
 

The Planning Institute of Jamaica (the Institute) was established as a body corporate under the 
Planning Institute of Jamaica Act on April 9, 1984.   The registered office of the Institute since April 
2008 is at 16 Oxford Road, Kingston 5, Jamaica.  Prior to that the registered office was located at 
10-16 Grenada Way, Kingston 5, Jamaica. 
  
The Institute is funded by grants received from the Government of Jamaica and is exempted from 
income tax, customs duty, stamp duties and transfer tax. 

 
1.2 Principal activities 
 

The objectives of the Institute include: 
 

(i) initiation and co-ordination of planning for economic, financial, social, cultural and 
physical development of Jamaica; 

 
(ii) monitoring the implementation of plans so initiated or co-ordinated; 
 
(iii) consultancy activities for Government Ministries, Agencies and Statutory Bodies; 
 
(iv) management of technical co-operation agreement programmes. 

 
1.3 Reporting currency  

 
These financial statements are expressed in Jamaican dollars which is the functional currency of 
the Institute.  

 
 
2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 
 

2.1 Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period 
 

In the current year, the Institute adopted the amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7, Reclassification 
of Financial Assets effective July 1, 2008, which permitted the reclassification of certain non-
derivative financial assets recognised in accordance with IAS 39.  
 
Also, in the current year, three interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee became effective for the Institute.  These are: 

 
IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions 
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 
IFRIC 14; IAS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and  
   their interaction 
 
The adoption of these Interpretations has not had any changes to the Institute’s accounting 
policies. 

 
2.2 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet effective 
 

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and 
Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective for the financial period being reported upon: 
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2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont’d) 

 
2.2         Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet effective (Cont’d) 

 
  Effective for annual periods 

 
 

      beginning on or after  
  

IAS 1,8,10,16,18,19,) 
20, 23,27, 28, 29,  )  
31, 34, 36, 38, 39,  )  
40, 41 and IFRS 7   ) 

 
Amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual 
Improvements to IFRS 

 
 
 
January 1, 2009 

IAS 1   (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements:  
- Comprehensive revision including requiring a    
 statement of comprehensive income 

 
 
January 1, 2009 

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs January 1, 2009 

IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
- Consequential amendments arising from 
amendments to  IFRS 3 

 
 
July 1, 2009 

IAS 28 Investments in Associates - Consequential 
amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3 

 
July 1, 2009 

IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures - Consequential 
amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3 

 
July 1, 2009 

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments 
relating to puttable instruments and obligations 
arising on liquidation 

 
January 1, 2009 

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
- Amendments to clarify Eligible Hedged Items July 1, 2009 

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards: 
- Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly 
Controlled  Entity or Associate 
- First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting 
Standards 

 
 
January 1, 2009 
July 1, 2009 

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Amendment relating to 
vesting conditions and cancellations 

 
January 1, 2009 

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations - Comprehensive revision on 
applying the acquisition method 

 
July 1, 2009 

IFRS 5 (Revised) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations - Amendment relating to Plans to sell the 
controlling interest in a subsidiary 

 
July 1, 2009 

IFRS 8 Operating Segments January 1, 2009 
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes July 1, 2008 
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate January 1, 2009 
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation October 1, 2008 
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners July 1, 2009 
IFRIC 18 Transfer of Asset from Customers July 1, 2009 

 
Except as noted below, the Board of Directors and management believe that the adoption of these 
standards and interpretations in the future periods at their effective dates will not be relevant to the 
financial statements of the Institute in the periods of initial application. 

http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ias27.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ias28.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ias31.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ias32.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ifrs01.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ifrs01.htm�
http://www.iasplus.com/standard/ifrs01.htm�
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2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (Cont’d) 

 
2.3      New and Revised Standards and Interpretations considered relevant 

 
• IAS 1 (Revised 2007) - Presentation of Financial Statements – IAS 1, among other things, 

affects the presentation of owner changes in equity and comprehensive income.  It 
requires the presentation of all non-owners changes in equity (comprehensive income) in 
one or two statements; either in a single statement of comprehensive income, or in an 
income statement and a statement of comprehensive income. On adoption at its effective 
date, the standard will result in a change in the presentation of the Institute’s income 
statement and the statement of changes in equity. 

 
•  IAS 23 (Revised) - Borrowing Costs.  The revision removes the option of either 

capitalising borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets or expensing these borrowing 
costs.  The revised standard requires management to capitalise borrowing costs 
attributable to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets that take a substantial time 
to get ready for their intended use or sale.  The adoption of this revised standard at its 
effective date is not expected to have a significant impact on the Institute’s financial 
statements as there are currently no qualifying assets. 

 
 
 

3 SCOPE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities and transactions relating to the Administration and 
Resource Management activities (Recurrent Programme) and the Research and 
Investigations/Developmental programmes (Capital A Projects) of the Institute only.  The financial 
statements do not reflect assets and liabilities and transactions of special projects (in particular technical 
assistance programmes) being administered on behalf of various agencies and funded wholly by those 
agencies or by those agencies and the Government of Jamaica (Capital B Projects). 
 
 
 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

4.1 Statement of compliance 
 

The Institute’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

 
4.2 Basis of preparation 
 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.  The principal 
accounting policies are set out below:   
 

4.3 Property and equipment 
 

All property and equipment held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative purposes, 
are recorded at historical cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses.   

 
Depreciation is charged so as to write-off the cost of assets, other than properties under 
construction over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.  The estimated useful 
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of 
any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.   
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4    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
4.3 Property and equipment (Cont’d) 

 
Property and equipment in the course of construction or assembly for administrative purposes or 
for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.  Cost 
includes any professional fees directly related to bringing the assets into use.  Depreciation of 
these assets, on the same basis as similar property and equipment, commences when the assets 
are ready for their intended use. 
 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognised in the income statement. 

 
  4.4 Impairment of tangible assets 

 
At each balance sheet date, the Institute reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine 
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).  Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Institute estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.  Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation 
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or 
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable 
and consistent basis can be identified. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than the 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately. 
 
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.  A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately. 

 
4.5 Financial instruments 

 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset to one entity and a financial 
liability to or equity to another entity. 
 
A financial asset is any asset that is: 

 
(a) cash 
(b) an equity instrument of another entity 
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4    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 

4.5 Financial instruments (Cont’d) 
 
(c) a contractual right: 

 
(i) to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
(ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under 

conditions that are potentially favourable to the Institute. 
 

A financial liability is any liability that is: 
 

(a) a contractual obligation: 
 

(i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
(ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under 

conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Institute. 
 

The Institute recognises financial assets or financial liabilities on its balance sheet only when the 
Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
 

4.6 Financial assets 
 

The Institute’s financial assets primarily comprise ‘loans and receivables’ with the classification 
being based on the purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time of initial 
recognition.  The financial assets of the Institute include cash and cash equivalents, accounts 
receivable and long-term receivables. 

 
4.6.1 Loans and receivables 

 
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments 
and that are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables.  Loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment.  Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate 
except that no interest is charged on trade and other receivables as they are usually 
settled within a short period during which recognition of interest would be immaterial.  
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the income 
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.   

 
4.6.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at 
bank and in hand net of bank overdraft and other highly liquid bank deposits held with 
financial institutions, with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition, and are held to meet cash requirements rather than for investment purposes. 

 
4.6.3 Impairment of financial assets  

 
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.  
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or 
more events that have occurred after initial recognition of the financial assets, the 
estimated future cash flows of the asset have been impacted. 
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4    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
 4.6 Financial assets (Cont’d) 

 
4.6.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)  
 

Objective evidence of impairment could include: 
 

• Significant financial difficulty of the issue or counter party; or 
• Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or 
• It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation. 
 

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are 
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a 
collective basis.  Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could 
include the Institute’s past experience of collecting payments, and increase in the number 
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days, as well as 
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on 
receivables. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all 
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account.  When a trade receivable is considered 
uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance account.  Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written-off are credited to income.  Changes in the carrying amount of 
the allowance account are recognised in the income statement. 

 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the income statement to the 
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does 
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been 
recognised. 

 
 

4.6.4 De-recognition of financial assets 
 

The Institute de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.  If the Institute neither 
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to 
control the transferred asset, the Institute recognises its retained interest in the asset and 
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.  If the Institute retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Institute 
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing 
for the proceeds received.  
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4    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 

4.7 Financial liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities of the Institute that include owed to projects and accounts payable are classified 
as other liabilities. 

 
4.7.1 Owed to projects 

 
These amounts are stated at nominal values.   

 
4.7.2 Accounts payable 
 

Accounts payable are initially measured at their fair values.  No interest is accrued on 
outstanding balances as these are usually settled within a short period during which any 
interest charged would be immaterial. 

 
4.7.3 De-recognition of financial liabilities   
 

The Institute de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Institute’s 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.  

 
4.8 Employee benefits 
 

4.8.1 Pension obligations 
 

The Institute operates a defined benefit pension plan for its permanent staff.  The plan is 
funded by contributions from employees and employer.  The employees contribute at the 
rate of 5% of pensionable salaries (with the option of contributing an additional 5%).  The 
Institute’s rate of contribution is determined by independent actuaries with a minimum of 
5% of pensionable salaries. 
 
The cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with 
independent actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial 
gains and losses that exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the Institute’s 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average 
remaining working lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised 
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised 
on a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become 
vested.  
 
The retirement benefit asset recognised in the balance sheet represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and 
losses and unrecognised past service costs, and as reduced by the fair value of plan 
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the unrecognised actuarial 
losses and past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in 
future contributions to the plan. 

 
4.8.2 Leave entitlement  

 
Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuities are recognised when they accrue to 
employees.  Provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and gratuity for 
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 
 

4.9 Inventories 
 

Inventory of publications held for sale is stated at lower of cost or net realisable value.  Publication 
in progress is stated at cost. 

 
4.10 Capital grants 
 

As a government-owned entity amounts received as special grants for the acquisition of property 
and equipment are recognised as a reserve at an amount equivalent to the cost of acquisition.  An 
amount equal to the annual depreciation charge on these assets is transferred from the capital 
reserve to accumulated surplus or deficit to systematically recognise the benefit of the grant over 
the useful lives of the assets acquired. 

 
4.11 Revenue recognition  
 

4.11.1 Government grants 
 
Revenue from government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received. 
 

4.11.2 Rental income 
 
The Institute’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in Note 
4.13.1 below. 
 

4.11.3 Interest income 
 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net 
carrying amount. 
 

4.11.4  Maintenance income 
 

Property maintenance fees are charged to tenant and accrued monthly by reference to 
annual contract period. 

 
 

4.12 Related party transactions and balances 
 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Related party 
transactions and balances are recognised and disclosed for the following: 

 
4.12.1 Enterprises and individuals owning directly or indirectly an interest in the voting power of 

the entity that gives significant influence over the entity’s affairs and close members of the 
families of these individuals. 
 

4.12.2 A member of key management personnel of the entity, that is, those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 
entity, including directors, officers and close members of the families of these individuals. 

 
4.12.3 Post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the entity. 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 

 
4.13 Leasing 
 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

 
4.13.1 The Institute as lessor 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms 
of the relevant lease.  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. 
 

4.13.2 The Institute as a lessee 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.  Contingent 
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.  

 
4.14 Foreign currencies 
 

The financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Institute operates (its functional currency). 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Institute, transactions in currencies other than the 
Institute’s functional currency, the Jamaican dollar, are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.  At each balance sheet date, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet 
date.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not retranslated. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the settlements of monetary items and on the retranslation of 
monetary items, are included in the income statement for the period in which they arise.   
 
 

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 
 

In the application of the Institute’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4, management is 
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.  
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
 
5.1 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
 

Management believes that, there are no judgments made that had a significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

(Cont’d) 
 
5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The following is a key source of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that has a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year. 

 
5.2.1 Retirement benefits 

 
As disclosed in Note 8, the Institute operates a defined benefit pension plan.  The amount 
shown in the balance sheet of an asset of approximately $70.1 million in respect of the 
defined benefits plan is subject to estimates in respect of periodic costs which costs are 
dependent on returns on assets, future discount rates, rates of salary increases and 
inflation rate in respect of the pension plan. 
 
The estimated return on pension assets assumption is determined by considering long-
term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment 
returns.  The Institute estimates the appropriate discount rate annually which rate is used 
to determine the present value of estimated cash outflows expected to be required to 
settle the pension and post-retirement benefit obligation.   
 
To determine the appropriate discount rate in the absence of high quality corporate bonds, 
the interest rate on government bonds that have maturities approximating the related 
pension liabilities were considered.   
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6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 

   Furniture,    
 Freehold Leasehold Fixtures & Motor Construction  
 Building Improvements Equipment  Vehicles       W.I.P.  
 

TOTAL 
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

Cost        
January 1, 2007 253,157 9,405 35,578 7,617     4,256 310,013 
Additions (government grants)        -        -     6,245 -            -        6,245 
Additions (project grants)        -             -             -                 -      119,844 

January 1, 2008 

119,844 

253,157 9,405 41,823 7,617 124,100 436,102 
Additions (government grants)        -        -     71,722 -            -        71,722 
Additions (project grants)        -        -     7,063 -     41,838 48,901 
Transfer to fixed assets  147,286     -         18,652     -    (  165,938  )       -      
December 31, 2008 

  
400,443 9,405 139,260  7,617       -        

 
556,725 

      
Accumulated depreciation       
January 1, 2007     6,329 9,332 33,142 3,939        -        52,742 
Charge for year     6,172      72     3,297  2,239       -        

January 1, 2008 

  11,780 

  12,501 9,404 36,439 6,178       -         64,522 
Charge for year      9,094     -        12,972  1,015       -        

December 31, 2008 

  23,081 

  21,595 9,404   49,411  7,193       -        
 

  87,603 
      

Net Book Value        
December 31, 2008 378,848        1   89,849    424        -        469,122 

December 31, 2007 240,656        1     5,384 1,439 124,100 371,580 
 
 

The following rates are used for depreciation of property and equipment: 
 

Building  - 2.5% 
Leasehold improvements - 33.3% 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
  (including computer equipment) - 10% - 20% 
Motor vehicles - 33.3% 
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7 LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 
 

(a) These include: 
  2008  

Rental deposit (see (b) below) 

2007 
  $’000  $’000 
 

-     782 
   
Staff loans receivable (see (c) below) 6,679 
 

4,809 
  

 6,679 5,591 
   
Less:  current portion of staff loans receivable (Note 10) (2,276 () 1,479
 

) 
  

 4,403 4,112 
 

(b) Rental deposit related to the deposit paid to the landlord as required under the operating lease 
arrangement for the rental of office premises that housed the Institute’s head office up to March 2008.  
The deposit was recovered during the year. 

 
(c) Staff loans are in relation to advances for purchase of motor vehicles which are secured by bills of sale on 

the motor vehicles and are recoverable by installments.  Interest on these loans range from 8% to 15% 
per annum. 

 
 
8 RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET  

 
The Institute operates a defined benefit plan for its permanent staff.  The assets of the scheme are held separately 
from those of the Institute in funds under the control of trustees and administered by an insurance company.  The 
plan is funded by contributions made by the employees and the Institute.  The Institute contributes the balance of 
the cost determined periodically by actuaries subject to a minimum of 5% of pensionable salaries.  Employees 
contribute 5% of the pensionable salaries as a basic contribution with an option to contribute an additional 5% of 
pensionable earnings.  The pension benefits are determined on a prescribed benefit basis and are payable at a rate 
of 1.67% of annualised salary at exit, times the pensionable years of service. 

 
The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out at December 31, 2008 by Rambarran & Associates Limited, 
consulting actuaries.  The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service costs and 
past service costs have been measured using the projected unit credit method. 

 
8.1 Principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows: 

 
 2008 
 

2007 
  

Gross discount rate  16%  13% 
Expected return on assets   14%   13.5% 
Expected rate of salary increases  13%  10% 
Future pension increases     5% 3.5% 
Inflation  10% 9.0% 
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8 RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET (Cont’d) 
 

8.2 Amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the plan is as follows: 
 
 

                     2008 
 

2007 
          $’000           $’000 

   
Present value of obligations (238,248) (183,238) 
Fair value of plan assets 412,214 
 

418,953 
  

 173,966 235,715 
Unrecognised past service cost 746 -       
Unrecognised net actuarial gains 21,110 (  44,266) 
Assets not recognised due to limitation in paragraph 58   
  of IAS 19 (125,753 () 157,013

Net asset in balance sheet 

) 

  70,069   34,436 
   

 
8.3 Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of the plan are as follows:  

 
 

 2008 
 

2007 
 $’000 $’000 

   
Current service cost  8,685 9,609 
Interest costs 21,697 18,911 
Expected return on plan assets (57,508) (43,509) 
Recognised actuarial gains (     113) -      
Recognised past service cost 35,345 -      
Change in unrecognised asset (31,260) 

Total included in staff costs (Note 18) 

40,387 

(23,154) 

Actual return on plan assets 

25,398 

15,907 55,592 
 
 

8.4 Movements in the net asset in the year were as follows: 
 

 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

   
Balance, January 1 34,436 48,705 
Amounts credited (charged) to income 23,154 (25,398) 
Contributions 12,479 
 

11,129 
  

Balance, December 31 70,069 34,436 
   

 
  



Page 19 
 
THE PLANNING INSTITUTE OF JAMAICA 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 

 
 

 

 
8 RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET (Cont’d)  

 
8.5 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were 

    as follows: 
 

 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

   
Opening defined benefit obligation 183,238 166,042 
Service cost 8,685 9,609 
Interest cost 21,697 18,911 
Member contributions 7,049 5,710 
Past service cost - vested benefits 35,345 -       
Past service cost - non-vested benefits 746 -       
Benefits paid (    4,997) (    3,292) 
Actuarial gain  (  13,515 ()   13,742
 

) 
  

Closing defined benefit obligation 238,248 183,238 
   

 
8.6 Changes in fair value of plan assets were as follows:  

 
 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

   
Opening fair value of plan assets  418,953 355,730 
Members’ contributions 7,049 5,710 
Employer’s contributions 12,479 11,129 
Expected return on plan assets 57,508 43,509 
Benefits paid (    4,997) (    3,292) 
Actuarial (loss) gain  (  78,778) 

Closing fair value of plan assets 

    6,167 

412,214 418,953 
 

 
8.7 The fair value of the plan assets at the balance sheet date is  
   analysed as follows:  

 
 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

Equity fund  133,625 167,252 
Fixed income fund 127,575 119,970 
Foreign exchange fund 46,591 43,293 
Mortgage and real estate fund 94,698 83,172 
Money Market fund     9,725 

Fair value of plan assets 

    5,266 

412,214 418,953 
 

The overall expected rate of return of 14% on plan assets was based on market expectation of inflation of 
(10%) plus a margin for real returns (4%) on a balanced portfolio of equities, bonds and property.  The 
directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on historical trends and analysts’ predictions of the 
market for the assets in the next twelve months. 
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8 RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET (Cont’d)  
 

8.7  (Cont’d) 
 
 The history of experience adjustment is as follows: 
 

                   2008        2007        2006        2005 
 

2004 
        $’000         $’000        $’000        $’000        $’000 

Present value of defined      
  benefit obligation (238,248) (183,238) (166,042) (125,595) (116,807) 
Fair value of plan assets 412,214 418,953 355,730 296,925 

Fund surplus 

264,488 

173,966 235,715 189,688 171,330 147,681 
Experience adjustments      
  on plan obligations 13,515 13,742 (  15,400) 14,027 (  53,415) 
Experience adjustments      
  on plan assets  78,778 (    6,167) (    9,721) 10,308 (  65,220) 

 
The Institute expects to make a contribution of $13.67 million (2008: $11.98 million) to the defined benefit 
plan during the next financial year. 
 
The plan assets do not include any of the Institute’s own financial instruments, nor any property occupied 
by or other assets used by the Institute. 

 
 

9 INVENTORIES   
 

These include:   
 

 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

Publications held for sale 5,869 6,356 
Publications in progress      -      

 

1,384 

5,869 7,740 
 

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was $5.9 million (2007: $7.7 million). 
 
 
10 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  
 
 

10.1 These include: 
 

 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

   
Maintenance fees 220 -      
Trade receivable (sale of publications)   242      176 
Prepayments 3,816 12,831 
Other receivables 21,261 
 

12,409 
  

 25,539 25,416 
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10 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)  
 
 

10.1 (Cont’d) 
 

The average credit period granted on sale of publications is 30 days.  No interest is charged on 
outstanding balances.   
 
Trade debtors with the carrying amount of $241,540 (2007: $176,515) are past due at the reporting date.  
However, the Institute considers these amounts are recoverable based on the credit quality of the 
amounts outstanding.  The Institute does not hold any collateral over these balances.  The average age of 
these receivables is 90 days (2007: 90 days). 

 
 

10.2 Other receivables include: 
 2008 
 

2007 
$’000 $’000 

   
Receivable from Government Ministries 5,305 4,621 
Reimbursable expense - utility 3,484 -     
Interest receivable 813 255 
Advances to staff 4,481 2,463 
Withholding tax recoverable 1,395 1,466 
Current portion of long-term receivables (Note 7)   2,276   1,479 
Other    3,507 

 

  2,125 

21,261 12,409 
 

The Institute considers that all amounts classified as other receivables are recoverable and there are no 
past due balances included in the carrying amounts reflected above. 

 
 

11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES  
 

11.1 Cash and bank balances comprise the following: 
 

    2008 
 

2007 
$’000     $’000 

   
Funds held for special projects 19,300 17,919 
Funds held for administration  and resource management 25,127 

 

24,522 

44,427 42,441 
 

11.2 Bank deposits include interest bearing accounts totalling $44.4 million (2007: $42.4 million), including a 
foreign currency deposit amounting to $11.4 million (US$146,176) (2007: $12.2 million (US$175,717)).  
Interest on local currency deposits are at rates ranging between 3% and 12.3% (2007:  3% to 12.3%) and 
foreign currency deposit at a rate of 2% (2007: 2%). 

 
11.3 Funds being held in bank accounts  in the name of the Institute but which are not accounted for in these 

financial statements (see Note 3) amounted to approximately $81.7 million at December 31, 2008 (2007: 
$155.8 million).  The funds held in these bank accounts include funds received from overseas agencies 
for special projects and building maintenance account. 
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12 GOVERNMENT CONTRIBUTION TO EQUITY 
 

This represents the net assets taken over from the National Planning Agency. 
 
 
13 CAPITAL GRANTS  
 

This represents value of property and equipment (net of depreciation) acquired from special grants received for 
such purposes (see also Note 4.10).   

 
               2008 
 

2007 
           $’000   $’000 

   
Balance at beginning of year 354,048 253,027 
Project grants received 61,505 109,427 
Transfer to accumulated surplus (  14,306 ()     8,406

Balance at end of year 

) 

401,247 354,048 
 
 
The grants received during the year were to assist in the renovation cost of the administrative building purchased in 
2005.   
 
 

14 OWED TO PROJECTS 
 

These include funds owed to projects funded by the Government of Jamaica and/or overseas funding agencies. 
 
The balance represents funds received by the Institute on behalf of certain special projects but not disbursed at the 
year-end.  The balances are shown net of advances made by the Institute, which are refundable by these special 
projects. 

 
 
15 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  
    2008    

Rent payable 

2007 
   $’000 $’000 
 

4,118 2,762 
Short-term employee benefits 44,132 33,781 
Government of Jamaica/   
 European Union Credit Scheme 6,462 6,462 
Accruals and other payables 23,289 
 

22,705 
  

 78,001 65,710 
 

The credit period on purchases of goods/services from the Institute’s major suppliers range from 30 - 60 days.  The 
Institute has financial risk management procedures in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit 
time frame. 

 
 
16 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
 

Government grants include recurrent grants received from the Ministry of Finance and Planning.  
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17 OTHER INCOME  
 2008 

Rental income  

2007 
 $’000 $’000 
 

6,844 4,058 
Building management fees  1,286 -     
Net loss on sale of publications (3,027) (2,355) 
Contributions - Special projects -     1,227 
Other  1,866 
 

1,633 
  

 6,969 4,563 
 
 
18 STAFF COSTS 
 2008 

Salaries and allowances 

2007 
 $’000 $’000 
 

247,509 203,682 
Statutory contributions 7,586 6,756 
Retirement benefit plan (credit) charge (Note 8.3) (  23,154) 25,398 
Accrued vacation benefits 10,351 3,994 
Other staff cost   10,236 
 

  11,212 
  

 252,528 251,042 
 
 
19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 

19.1 The following transactions were carried out with related parties comprising directors and key management 
personnel: 

 
  2008  

Salaries and other short-term benefits  

2007 
  $’000  $’000 

  
Salaries and allowances including statutory contributions 35,766 28,997 
Retirement benefit plan (credit) charge (  4,010) 1,745 
Accrued vacation   7,097 

 
  5,221 

  
 38,853 35,963 

 
The remuneration of directors and key management is determined by the Board of Directors and the 
Ministry of Finance and Planning. 

 
19.2 Loans to related parties 

 2008  

Loans to key management personnel 

2007 
   $’000  $’000 
 

272 713 
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20 COMMITMENTS  
 

20.1 Capital commitments  
     2008  

For acquisition of equipment and motor vehicles  

2007 
   $’000  $’000  

2,797 36,534 
Renovation of building and relocation costs 2,264 
 

32,248 
  

 5,061 68,782 
 

20.2 Operating lease arrangements 
 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Institute for its office location.  Rentals are 
negotiated for an average term of 2 to 5 years. 

    2008  

Minimum lease and maintenance payments under  

2007 
    $’000  $’000  

  
   operating lease recognised as an expense in the year      -      24,690 
 
At the balance sheet date, the Institute has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating 
leases, which fall due as follows: 

      2008  

Within one year  

2007 
    $’000  $’000  

     -      6,210 
 
 
21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

21.1 Capital risk management 
 

The Institute manages its capital to ensure that the entity will be able to continue as a going concern.  The 
Institute is a Government owned entity and its operations are funded by the Government of Jamaica.  The 
Board of Directors is responsible to obtain adequate funding from the Government of Jamaica for its 
operations to ensure that the Institute meets its operational objectives and remains a viable entity.  The 
Institute’s overall capital risk management strategy remains unchanged from 2007.  
 
The capital structure of the Institute consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to the 
Government of Jamaica.   

 
21.2 Significant accounting policies 
 

Details of the significant policies and methods adopted included the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of 
financial assets, financial liabilities and equity. 

 
21.3 Categories of financial instruments 

                 2008 
 

2007 
       $’000          $’000 

Financial assets    
Loans and receivables (including cash and bank balances) 69,157 

 
59,138 

  
Financial liabilities    

Other liabilities  56,507 
 

55,538 
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

21.4 Financial risk management objectives 
 

The Institute’s financial risk management policies are directed by the Board of Directors, assisted by a 
committee of the Board and the senior management.  The Institute’s activities expose it to credit related 
risks, liquidity risks and market risks that include foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. 
 
The annual budgeting exercise and the continuing monitoring of the operations of the Institute against the 
budgets allow the Board and the senior management to achieve its objectives and to manage relevant 
financial risks that could be faced by the Institute. 
 

21.5 Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Institute.  The Institute’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and accounts 
receivable.  The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Institute minimises this risk by 
seeking to limit its obligations to substantial financial institutions.  In respect of accounts receivable the risk 
is minimised by providing credit facilities to credit worthy parties. 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment 
losses, represents the Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk. 
 

21.6 Liquidity risk management 
 

Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Institute will encounter difficulty in raising 
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments.  The directors do not consider that there 
is a significant liquidity risk because the operations are funded by the Government of Jamaica.   
 
The table below summarises the Institute’s remaining contractual maturities for the financial assets and 
financial liabilities. 
 
  
 

2008  
Weighted     

 Average     
 Effective Less than 1 to 3 Over 12  
     Rate  1 Month Months Months 
 

Total 
% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

Financial assets      
Long-term receivables 4 -      -     4,403 4,403 
Accounts receivable  20,327 -     -      20,327 
Cash and bank deposits 8 36,753  7,674     -       
 

44,427 
     

  57,080 7,674 4,403 69,157 
Financial liabilities      
Accounts payable  27,257 -     -      27,257 
Owed to projects   29,250     -           -       
 

29,250 
     

  56,507      -           -       56,507 
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

21.6 Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) 
 

  
 

2007  
Weighted     

 Average     
 Effective Less than 1 to 3 Over 12  
     Rate  1 Month Months Months 
 

Total 
% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 

Financial assets      
Long-term receivables 4 -      -      4,112 4,112 
Accounts receivable  12,585 -      -     12,585 
Cash and bank deposits 11 24,532  17,909     -      
 

42,441 
     

  37,117 17,909 4,112 59,138 
Financial liabilities      
Accounts payable  28,499 -      -     28,499 
Owed to projects   27,039      -            -      
 

27,039 
     

  55,538        -       -  55,538 
      
 

21.7 Market risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or 
factors affecting all securities traded in the market.  Except in respect of foreign currencies as disclosed in 
Note 21.8 below and interest rates as disclosed in Note 21.9 below the Institute has no exposure to market 
risk. 

 
21.8 Foreign currency risk management 

 
The Institute undertakes certain transactions in currencies other than the Jamaican dollar resulting in 
exposures to exchange rate fluctuation.   Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.   
 
The following balances are included in these financial statements:  

     2008    

Cash and bank deposits – United States dollars 

2007 
    $’000   $’000 
 

11,400 12,200 
 

Based on the balances held in foreign currency at the balance sheet the Institute’s exposure to foreign 
currency risk is not significant.  However, the management consistently monitors the Institute’s exposure 
as and when it undertakes transactions in foreign currencies to minimise the effects on its operating 
results. 
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 

 
21.8 Foreign currency risk management (Cont’d) 

 
Foreign currency sensitivity 
  
The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% devaluation in the Jamaican dollar against the United 
States dollar.  10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key 
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign 
exchange rates.  The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% devaluation in foreign currency 
rate. 
 
If the Jamaican dollar weakens by 10% against the United States dollar, net surplus will increase by: 

 
  
 

            US Dollar Impact   
                   2008 

 
   2007 

        J$’000         J$’000 
   
Net surplus 1,135 1,200 

 
This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on cash and bank balances at year end. 
  
The company’s sensitivity to foreign currency has increased during the current year mainly due to inflation 
throughout the financial year which has resulted in increasing US dollar denominated cash resources for a 
given holding of US dollar.  US dollar holdings at year end had decreased by US$29,541 (17%) over the 
previous year. 
 
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk 
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.   
 
 

21.9 Interest rate risk  
 

Interest rate risk is the potential that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
market interest rates as a result of cash flow or fair value interest rate risk.  Financial instruments subject 
to fixed interest rates are exposed to fair value interest rate risk while those subject to floating interest 
rates are exposed to cash flow risk.  The Institute’s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and 
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. 
 
Interest sensitivity analysis 

 
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank 
deposits.  The analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of deposits at balance sheet date remains 
the same for the whole year.  A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate 
risk internally to the management and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible 
changes in interest rates. 
 
If interest rates had been 10 percent higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the 
Institute’s surplus for the year would increase/decrease by $444,270 (2007:  $424,000).   
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

21.10 Fair value of financial instruments 
 

Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  A market price, where an active market 
(such as a recognised stock exchange) exists, is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial 
instrument.  Where market prices are not available for some of the financial assets and liabilities of the 
Institute, fair values in the financial statements have been determined using various estimation techniques 
based on market conditions existing at balance sheet date.  Generally, judgement is necessarily required 
in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value.  Accordingly, the estimates presented in 
these financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Institute would realise in a 
current market exchange.  

 
The following methods and assumptions have been used: 

 
(i) The carrying value of cash and bank balances, accounts receivable and accounts payable 

approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature. 
(ii) The fair value of owed to projects cannot be reasonably assessed as there are no fixed payment 

terms and applicable interest rates. 
(iii) The fair value of staff loans included in long-term receivables has not been estimated as the 

interest charged on these loans are special rates offered to the employees.  The fair value of 
other long-term receivable cannot be reasonably assessed as there is no fixed payment date. 
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OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 
 
  2008   
 $’000   $’000 

2007 

 
Staff costs   
 Salaries and allowances 209,567 178,054 
 Retirement benefits plan charge (credit) (  23,154) 25,398 
 Travelling and motor vehicle upkeep 37,942 27,854 
 Statutory contributions  7,586 6,756 
 Staff welfare and subsistence  10,236 8,986 
 Accrued vacation   10,351 
 

    3,994 
  

 252,528 
Property expenses 

251,042 
  

 Rent and maintenance 10,719 24,690 
 Maintenance - freehold building 3,947 16,871 
 Parking 2,705 3,445 
 Security 4,650 209 
 Utilities  17,552     7,824 
 Landscaping 325 -       
 Cleaning and maintenance     2,523 -       
 Insurance 2,392 2,851 
 Repairs and maintenance 3,574 681 
 Property tax           37       -      
 

  
  

   48,424 
 

  56,571 
  

Consultancy and other professional fees      3,672 
 

    2,499 
  

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   23,081 
 

  11,780 
  

Operating expenses   
 Foreign travel 3,082 1,772 
 Entertainment 1,116 714 
 Motor vehicle expenses 2,488 1,691 
 Computer  and supplies 2,846 3,583 
 Postage 8 484 
 Stationery and office supplies 4,485 2,977 
 Advertising, special events and publications  7,134 3,990 
 Other general expenses     5,552 
 

    2,809 
  

   26,711 
 

  18,020 
  

 354,416 339,912 
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